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1                   P R O C E E D I N G S

2

3                 MS. PALERMO:  Good evening, and welcome

4      to this meeting of the Brookline Zoning Board of

5      Appeals.  My name is Lark Palermo, and I am chair

6      of this continued hearing on the applicant's

7      request for a comprehensive permit to develop a

8      40B project at 45 Bartlett Crescent.

9                 Although I've had brief conversations

10      and interactions with both Randolph Meiklejohn

11      and Paul Bell, for the record, I will ask each of

12      them to confirm that they can hear me, and

13      obviously, they're present.  Randolph.

14                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  I am here, and I can

15      hear you fine.

16                 MS. PALERMO:  Paul Bell.

17                 MR. BELL:  All good.

18                 MS. PALERMO:  Excellent.  Also staff,

19      Victor Panak, when I call your name, please

20      respond that you can hear me and you're here.

21                 MR. PANAK:  Are you going to call my

22      name?  I'm here.

23                 MS. PALERMO:  I called it first.  Thank

24      you.  And I believe we also have representatives
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1      from the developer's team.  Shall I check in with

2      them now, or wait until they are prepared to do

3      their presentation?

4                 MR. PANAK:  Why don't you continue with

5      the regular opening of the hearing spiel, and

6      then I'll do that.

7                 MS. PALERMO:  That sounds perfect.

8      Thank you.  For the record, again, I will read

9      this information about the fact that this hearing

10      is being conducted remotely and in a manner

11      consistent with the legislature's extension of

12      Governor Baker's March 12, 2020 executive order

13      concerning the now expired state of emergency in

14      the Commonwealth due to the outbreak of COVID-19.

15                 The ZBA is authorized to meet entirely

16      remotely, so long as adequate public access is

17      provided, and adequate public access does not

18      include public participation, unless such

19      participation is required by law, and this

20      hearing will feature public comment.

21                 For this hearing, the ZBA is convening

22      by video conference via Zoom, as posted on the

23      town's calendar, which identifies how the public

24      may access the hearing.  Please be advised that
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1      this hearing is and that some attendees may be

2      participating by video conference.  Accordingly,

3      please be aware that others may see you, and take

4      care not to screen share your computer.  Anything

5      that you broadcast may be captured by the

6      recording.

7                 All supporting materials that have been

8      provided to members of this body are also

9      available to the public and may be accessed

10      through the town website or from Victor Panak by

11      request.

12                 Finally, before I turn to the agenda, I

13      will cover some ground rules that will permit

14      clear and effective conduct of our business and

15      help to ensure accurate minutes.

16                 I will introduce each speaker on the

17      agenda.  After they conclude their remarks, I

18      will invite each member, by name, to provide any

19      comment, question, or motion.  Please hold yours

20      until your name is called.

21                 Please also remember to mute your phone

22      or computer when you are not speaking and to

23      speak clearly and in a way that helps generate

24      accurate minutes.  If members wish to engage in
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1      sidebar comment with other members, please do so

2      through me.  Finally, each vote taken in this

3      hearing will be conducted by roll call vote.

4                 For the public comment component of

5      this hearing, I will first ask members of the

6      public who wish to speak to identify themselves

7      by name and address only.  I will call on each by

8      name.  If you wish to speak at this hearing,

9      please enter your name into the chat box.  You

10      can find the chat icon on the bottom of your

11      screen.  Click on the icon, and the chat window

12      will appear on the right.

13                 Our host, Victor Panak, will cue

14      speakers in the order in which the request is

15      received.  Additionally, we will ask if members

16      of the public who are calling in would like to

17      speak.

18                 Now, tonight's agenda will be as

19      follows.  Members of the developer's team will

20      present updates on plans for the project and any

21      other information they would like to share with

22      this panel about the project.

23                 Members of the ZBA will make comments

24      and ask questions.  Then Victor Panak will
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1      present a draft version of the decision and a

2      draft version of the requested waiver list, and

3      that list will be attached to the decision when

4      it is finalized.  He will post the documents on

5      the screen, and members of the ZBA will have an

6      opportunity to comment.

7                 After that, members of the public will

8      be invited to comment, and I remind you that the

9      comments should be limited to the topics of

10      tonight's hearing, which are the developer's

11      updates and the draft decision and the waiver

12      list.

13                 And I think it would be helpful again

14      for me to talk a little bit about how the process

15      works here in Brookline.  We are at a point where

16      we are going to be discussing a draft decision,

17      and typically in Brookline, this is a two-step or

18      two-meeting process before we reach a final

19      decision on a 40B permit.

20                 At this hearing, the plan is for us to

21      discuss potential revisions, additions, and

22      deletions to the draft decision and the draft

23      waiver list.  That includes comments and

24      questions from the ZBA, as well as comments and
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1      questions from the developer.  We will go through

2      it on a page by page basis.  I'll start.  We'll

3      see if there are other comments from the ZBA

4      members, and the developer will have a chance to

5      respond.

6                 At the following meeting, we will

7      discuss what is a newly-revised draft reflecting

8      discussions that take effect this evening.  The

9      developer will be asked to allow for us to meet

10      one more time after this meeting, and we have

11      already ascertained that everyone is available on

12      April 26.

13                 We will not plan to close the public

14      hearing at this date, today, because that would

15      preclude public comment at the next meeting, and

16      that includes comment by the developer.  So this

17      is a discussion and analysis, and ultimately

18      resulting in a conclusion regarding a final

19      decision reflecting one assumes what will be an

20      approval of a comprehensive permit.

21                 So with that, unless Victor has

22      anything else to add, I will move to a

23      presentation by the developer and his team.  I

24      recognize Eli Schwartz.
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1                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Hi, Lark.  How are you?

2                 MS. PALERMO:  I'm very well, thank you.

3      How are you?

4                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Good.  I'm in a

5      different place tonight, and I seem to have a

6      glare, but I guess as the sun sets, it will pass.

7      Nice to see you.

8                 So in terms of our presentation, we

9      weren't expecting to give a presentation because

10      we haven't really made any material changes to

11      the plans, other than to put them in final plan,

12      set up record in stamped form, and to make very

13      minor edits to make sure that all the plans

14      reference each other appropriately and are

15      copasetic with each other.

16                 I guess the only truly new material is

17      that we did manage via the route that Cliff

18      suggested, which was a very good workaround I

19      hadn't thought of, through a manufacturer to get

20      a photometric plan, which I have.  So I can pull

21      it up or pull up any and all of the material to

22      the extent that you all would like, but our

23      expectation was we would focus on the waivers and

24      decision discussion.
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1                 MS. PALERMO:  Well, I think it probably

2      would be helpful for the board and the public to

3      understand what the photometric plan includes.

4      As you know, there is concern among neighbors

5      that the lighting not interfere with their homes.

6                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Yeah.

7                 MR. PANAK:  Eli, you also submitted

8      something on off street construction parking that

9      I think it would be good to just briefly discuss

10      in the open public hearing section.

11                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Sure.  So should I share

12      my screen starting with the photometric plan?

13                 MS. PALERMO:  That would be helpful,

14      yes.  Can you authorize him to do that, Victor?

15                 MR. PANAK:  Yeah, he should be already.

16      If you need, Eli, I can put it up on the screen,

17      and you can certainly talk about it.

18                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Yeah, will you put it

19      up?  I have this folder of everything for this

20      hearing, but I'm just trying to -- planting,

21      landscape, landscape, landscape.  I'm not --

22      somehow I'm not seeing that.  I can also get it

23      somewhere else if we need it, but do you have it

24      at the ready?
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1                 I think there's -- yeah, maybe there's

2      -- that would be a good -- so we basically -- we

3      went to a manufacturer with -- that has an in

4      house planning department via our landscape

5      architect -- I think she's worked with this

6      company and him before -- and we gave sort of a

7      general aesthetic description of what we were

8      looking for in the fixtures, which we did provide

9      some samples of that they came up with and we

10      thought were a nice fit.  And it was designed to

11      meet applicable code, which has various

12      requirements for the intensity of light along all

13      egress paths.

14                 So it meets that, and while meeting

15      that, it's meant to be directional and have a

16      very quick fall off so that it doesn't have light

17      pollution outside of its intended range.  And the

18      photometric plan, which is a little out of my

19      dimension to get into great detail, I think

20      indicates this with these readings of -- if

21      Victor zooms in on the legend somewhere, these

22      sort if lumen readings that are mapped out around

23      the building so one could see how quickly the

24      intensity of light falls off, and maybe it's on
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1      one of the pages.  Yeah, notes.  It's very small.

2                 Readings shown are based on total LLF,

3      as shown at grade.  So anyways, it's been

4      designed to meet code and anything in the

5      Brookline zoning ordinance.  Yeah, it's pretty

6      simple, and we can take a look at the fixtures if

7      people would like just to get a sense of what

8      we're proposing, although we did note that given

9      just the way everything is now, however many

10      months it will be until we order these, we may

11      not be able to get the exact ones we're looking

12      at here, although we may.

13                 Yeah, so those are the -- they're

14      called tricas, and there's sort of a taller

15      version that's more of an elevated effect, and

16      then there's shorter ones that are just sort of

17      ground lighting.  It's a family of different

18      fixtures with this similar sort of -- I'd say on

19      the line between modern and traditional aesthetic

20      in a sort of matte graphite.  There should be

21      very little bleed.  They're all directional, and

22      the photometric plans should indicate that the

23      intensity of the light falls off very quickly as

24      you move away from the light and the property.
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1                 MS. PALERMO:  Thank you.  I'd like to

2      check with the members of the panel to see if

3      they have any questions or comments, and I would

4      also ask is your architect available for this

5      meeting?

6                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  My architect was not

7      going to attend the meeting, and she didn't have

8      anything to do with the photometric plan.

9                 MS. PALERMO:  I just thought maybe she

10      could help interpret them, if need be.  Well, I

11      will first go to Randolph Meiklejohn.

12                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Thanks, Lark.  I think

13      I just have one question.  Eli, when you started

14      scrolling down to whatever this is, pages or a

15      pdf, there were some fixtures that went by

16      before you got to the one where you were

17      describing its style and its effect of the light

18      cutoff.  So maybe just go to the -- it was just

19      sort of a first -- yeah, that's right.

20                 So this was what I had a question

21      about.  These look like these Holophane fixtures.

22      These look like they might be unshielded.  Where

23      are you using these, if they are unshielded?

24                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Victor, can you zoom in
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1      on this page?  So these are the -- right.  These

2      are the -- these are emergency lights that are

3      required -- so if we go back to the main plan, I

4      think we're going to be able to see where these

5      are used.  They're required on an egress path to

6      -- so let's see, if we go up --

7                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Okay, in emergency

8      only, so they're not the typical exterior

9      lighting?

10                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Yeah, they're not the

11      landscape lights.  They're the egress lighting

12      paths, yeah.

13                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Yeah, thank you.  That

14      was my only question.  I appreciate it.

15                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Yeah, and they're not as

16      -- they're obviously not nearly as aesthetically

17      pleasing as the others, but yeah.

18                 MS. PALERMO:  And I would just add to

19      that.  Piggy-backing off of that question, is it

20      correct that they won't be lit, except in the

21      event of an emergency?

22                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  It's my understanding

23      that that's correct.  I think if we zoomed in --

24      again, I'm not an expert at this, and it was --
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1      we begged these people to get this done on time,

2      and it was -- the amount of correspondence was

3      limited, but I think that some of this stuff is

4      explained.

5                 Maybe if we go up, Victor, and look at

6      all of these -- I'm just going to pull these up

7      on my -- if we look at the plans where it calls

8      out that these lights are going to be used, it

9      might give some specs on the main pages.  So Type

10      A1.  Yeah, can we zoom in on the --

11                 MS. PALERMO:  No, I can't read it.

12                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  On the luminaire

13      schedule?  I'm going to just pull it up here so I

14      can dig in and try to get you the right answer

15      here.  I think it's going to be here.

16                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  The schedule suggests

17      that there is a quantity of six of them, and they

18      seem to be drawn as if they're wrapping around

19      the narrow path around the kind of uphill end of

20      the building.  Isn't that right?

21                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  I'm zooming in on this

22      section, Features and Specifications for

23      Holophane, and the problem is it's blurry.  I'm

24      just wondering if it's a defect in the -- I'm on
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1      the town website.  I'm going to get my version.

2      Just one more second, and I may be able to see it

3      exactly.  There it is.  Here it is from the guy.

4                 MR. ENGLER:  Mr. Meiklejohn is correct,

5      though, in that those six lights are on the -- I

6      mean, I guess it would be the easterly portion of

7      the building.

8                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Yeah, Victor, just get

9      us back to that schedule at the bottom corner of

10      the second drawing.  There we go.  Luminaire

11      schedule, there it is.  That CCAFPWT aligns with

12      the product number on the emergency light cut

13      sheet that we saw.

14                 MR. PANAK:  There's six of them, and

15      their icon is this little black rectangle, but

16      it's very -- it's fairly difficult.  It's part of

17      the black rectangle.  I think they're right here.

18                 MR. ENGLER:  Well, it's easier to

19      identify by their type.  They're Type A1.

20                 MR. PANAK:  Right, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5.

21                 MR. ENGLER:  And there's one down

22      below.  I think that's six.

23                 MR. PANAK:  They wrap around the back,

24      3, 4, 5, 6.  Yeah, there they are.
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1                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  I guess I'm just not

2      sure.  Maybe they're always on, but then we're

3      seeing here that they fade to -- they're at .1

4      what looks maybe ten feet off the building, and

5      then they get to zero back in this hill behind

6      the building.

7                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Why don't you look

8      into that, because as unshielded fixtures

9      pointing straight at the nearby property line,

10      they shouldn't be on all the time.

11                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Do we have any of these

12      that are pointed, I mean because it seems like

13      these are only at the back of the property that

14      are in this hill, right?  There's none on the

15      line with 37 Bartlett.

16                 MR. ENGLER:  Correct.

17                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  But from a building on

18      an adjacent property that is taller than your

19      fence, you will see these things if they are not

20      shielded if they are on.

21                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Yeah, just the --

22                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  They're going to

23      illuminate in all directions.  It would be good

24      to know that they are not on all the time.
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1                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  I'm going to find out.

2      I wish -- I've never noticed that I can't read

3      this.  It's just blurry if you zoom in enough to

4      read the features and specs of the Holophanes,

5      and I can't get it right now.  I'm sorry.

6                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  But if I can comment,

7      it's not really a feature of the fixture.  It's

8      on how they are wired and controlled in response

9      to, say, the fire alarm or other emergency

10      systems.

11                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Right.  No, I just

12      thought maybe in the description of their use, it

13      would mention that they're -- they come on --

14                 MR. PANAK:  Well, it says here they are

15      optionally normally off or normally on with photo

16      self control.  So it sounds like you just have to

17      set it to be normally off.

18                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Where did you find that,

19      Victor?

20                 MR. PANAK:  It's on the details.

21                 MS. PALERMO:  Any other questions,

22      Randolph?

23                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  No.  Thank you, Lark.

24                 MS. PALERMO:  Thank you.  Paul Bell?
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1                 MR. BELL:  I do not have any questions.

2                 MS. PALERMO:  I don't have any either.

3      The second item you were going to discuss is the

4      temporary pickup and drop-off parking?

5                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Yeah.  I can pull up the

6      letter I sent here if I share my screen.  Hold on

7      one second.  So anyways, this is the letter I

8      wrote about it.

9                 So I've actually started having

10      meetings with a couple of general contractors

11      about this and discussing it, but I also did a

12      pretty thorough drive and walk and study of the

13      neighborhood to identify --

14                 MR. PANAK:  Eli, we can definitely talk

15      about this.  What I had in mind was more your

16      email about off site construction, staging, and

17      parking where you discuss --

18                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Oh, I have the wrong

19      thing pulled up.  I'm sorry.

20                 MR. GOLD:  You've got the wrong one,

21      Eli.

22                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Sorry, sorry, sorry.

23      There it is.  I have it.  I have that one now.

24      I'm sorry.  I didn't even look at what I pulled
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1      up yet.  The Word document is taking a second to

2      open.

3                 So I did a drive around and a walk

4      around and tried to study places that it looked

5      like people might have lots that were

6      underutilized that were close enough and that

7      were of a size that would be useful, and I

8      actually found quite a handful of things.

9                 It's really tough right in the area,

10      although there's some possibility that it's

11      possible to rent parking in the Citizens Bank

12      area of the Whole Foods lot across the street,

13      which is something that the Five Washington

14      project has pursued with various caveats.

15                 So that's unsure, and I'm still unsure

16      about the property on Westbourne Terrace, but

17      since it's been compromised, and maybe it's going

18      to be demolished, I'm not too sure about that.

19                 We have a little bit of parking for a

20      phase of the project that we have an agreement,

21      or a potential agreement about with our direct

22      neighbors at 37 Bartlett, but I think we're going

23      to need to go into Brighton in the area of North

24      Beacon Street as it approaches down on the
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1      Watertown border, and there's a number of things.

2                 So I found a church called the Greater

3      Boston Chinese Alliance Church, which is at 239

4      North Beacon Street in Brighton, which is about a

5      seven-minute drive from 45 Bartlett, that had, I

6      think, adequate size for all of our off site

7      staging needs, and they don't seem to use it

8      during weekday work hours at all.

9                 And I had several conversations with

10      the representative for the church, and it got to

11      the point they said they would be interested and

12      that I should get back to them with a timeline

13      and an offer about what I'm thinking financially.

14      So that seemed to be possible.

15                 Right around there, there were several

16      other lots.  Some of them the ownership was a

17      little bit more opaque and hard for me to get to.

18      There's tow companies, auto body dealers, a

19      couple -- a little bit of a commercial strip mall

20      that's partially vacant and seems to have a great

21      deal of parking.  So I was confident that at that

22      distance, we would be able to procure something

23      that would be very helpful, and somewhat

24      optimistic that we may get something closer as
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1      well, and that was sort of the extent of my

2      update.

3                 I mean, I guess other details about it

4      are that it sort of depends on RGC and the

5      building department is that our ability to

6      accommodate things on site will change during the

7      project.  So in the beginning, when we're

8      excavating, it will be very minimal, and we'll

9      have to rely heavily on these lots and on a

10      couple of parking spaces from our neighbor, but

11      as we get the driveway and the slab in, we'll be

12      able to have more of our equipment on site within

13      the construction.  And different GCs have

14      different thoughts on that.  But I think that is

15      a good enough overview.  I'm happy to speak more

16      on any details, if people have questions.

17                 MS. PALERMO:  Randolph, do you have any

18      questions on this?

19                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  I don't.  Thank you.

20                 MS. PALERMO:  Paul Bell?

21                 MR. BELL:  No, no questions.  Thank

22      you.

23                 MS. PALERMO:  I just have one, and that

24      is you just referenced, Eli, a couple of parking
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1      spaces from our neighbor.  What did you mean by

2      that?

3                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  So our neighbors at 37

4      Bartlett have offered to rent us the ability to

5      -- they have -- so we would need permission, I

6      think, from the building department for this,

7      too, but they don't -- they wouldn't want us to

8      access via their driveway, but they've offered

9      that if we come through our property and move

10      across the property line during construction,

11      they have an area that's sort of mulched behind

12      their parking area in their yard that could

13      accommodate --

14                 They don't want construction vehicles,

15      but passenger vehicles or private vehicles for

16      people who are working that could accommodate

17      several, and they would be open to working

18      something out about using those spaces, they

19      said, which we could definitely use in the early

20      phases of the project before the driveway and the

21      grade changes might make accessing them not

22      possible.

23                 MS. PALERMO:  What about a construction

24      trailer?
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1                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  A trailer?  I mean,

2      that's a good -- I mean, we probably will on site

3      somewhere have -- we're going to have to have

4      something.

5                 MS. PALERMO:  Right.

6                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Yeah.

7                 MS. PALERMO:  And how many spaces were

8      available potentially from the neighbor?

9                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  I'm not even sure

10      exactly.  I mean, I walked with them and looked

11      at it.  I want to say three.

12                 MS. PALERMO:  Okay.

13                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  It's not going to solve

14      the whole problem, but certainly helping right

15      there.

16                 MS. PALERMO:  That's true.  I

17      understand Randolph does have an additional

18      question that he would like to ask.  So Randolph?

19                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Thanks, Lark.  Eli and

20      team, this is a question about some of the site

21      and sidewalk details relating to the drop-off and

22      delivery area on the little triangular easement

23      parcel, and I wonder whether we could first look

24      at the -- in Attorney Gold's memo, there was sort
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1      of a diagram that showed a rectangle of the area

2      of the parcel that would be used for these drop-

3      off and delivery functions.  And then I wanted to

4      look at a drawing that has been revised since our

5      last meeting, which is a landscape plan of this

6      area.

7                 I'm sort of going to questions about

8      the sidewalk.  So the first question about this

9      -- because it's -- I might as well ask the

10      question here, because it doesn't really show in

11      any detail on the landscape plan, is -- and I

12      know there's always a kind of element of how much

13      you know and how much you can control because

14      this is not the applicant's property.  Do you

15      know whether the drop-off and delivery kind of

16      easement area will be paved, and will the whole

17      triangle be paved for vehicle use?

18                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  So I think I'm going to

19      let John speak to this a little bit more, but

20      just to say it sort of still is -- well, it's

21      been ripped up now, but prior to Five Washington

22      starting construction, it was paved, and there

23      was -- there is an existing curb cut that covers

24      most of it that we've shown on the updated
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1      landscape plan.

2                 And we did reach out to the Five

3      Washington development team to see if they could

4      provide a final landscape plan at this stage that

5      shows their intention for that, how they're going

6      to leave it, and they said they will happily

7      provide it, but they don't have it yet, and he'll

8      be back to me in a couple of months.

9                 So I don't think I can -- I mean, it

10      seems likely that they would leave it all paved,

11      but I don't think I can answer definitively.

12      John?

13                 MR. GOLD:  Yeah, Eli and Mr.

14      Meiklejohn, hi.  I mean, it's a passageway.  It's

15      an easement area.  It's the entire easement area.

16      And we initially approached the abutter at Five

17      Washington because we thought it would be --

18      although this has never been part of the 40B

19      locus or the application, it's an amenity that we

20      thought would be useful to sort of keep the

21      traffic off of -- the delivery vehicles off of

22      Bartlett Crescent.

23                 So we approached the Five Washington,

24      and they said, well, what do you really want to
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1      do because we do have to -- we do share those

2      easement rights, and we're the dominant estate in

3      the sense that we have the right to pass, but we

4      don't own the property.

5                 So the passage rights are subject to

6      whatever other reasonable uses the property owner

7      has without interfering with our passage rights.

8      And then, again, they have passage rights as

9      well.

10                 So their response initially was, well,

11      show us what you want.  So we generated -- or

12      part of our team, Peter Blaisdell, generated this

13      plan, which you're looking at, and initially we

14      were drafting -- and I drafted the easement

15      agreement, and I think it's in that package.

16                 When I drafted it, I attached this plan

17      because we didn't want to take up the whole

18      easement area with a -- which we saw as sort of a

19      transient use of the area, not a fixed use that

20      would be paved with lines and all of that sort of

21      thing because it is a passageway.

22                 And during the negotiation and sort of

23      how it matured and just sort of, well, you could

24      have these expanded rights, but it didn't really
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1      end up referencing this plan, per se.  And so the

2      intent is that we are going to file at the

3      appropriate time an actual easement document,

4      which you see in our package, but we're not

5      intending to file at that time any plan that

6      specifically shows where within that triangular

7      passageway area the drop-off and deliver will

8      take place.

9                 I think it's a practical matter.  We're

10      certainly at the construction permit stage.

11      We're going to have to identify that area a

12      little more carefully, and by then we'll

13      certainly have a landscape plan from the owner of

14      the property, and we'll have to sort of -- I

15      think we'll certainly plan on working with them

16      to develop a plan that works not only for them,

17      but also for us.

18                 I think that's kind of the approach

19      we're taking.  I think to do anything more than

20      that is a really big ask that I don't think we

21      can deliver on, at least certainly not now.  And

22      I think the enhanced use to this was really a

23      negotiation that was part of a more global

24      negotiation with the abutter, and I thought we
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1      did a pretty good job with it, and I thought we

2      developed something that at least enhanced the

3      project itself without actually being a part of

4      the project.  I don't know whether this has

5      addressed any of your concerns or issues, but

6      I'll certainly --

7                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  So the first half of

8      it, yes.  I mean, I appreciate the background.

9      I'd like to move on to -- and I'm going to finish

10      raising this question, which I don't think you're

11      going to be able to resolve tonight, but I'd like

12      you to hear about my concern on the record,

13      because I think as you go forward with the

14      details of exactly how your use of this easement

15      area and the way that you operate on it, as you

16      work those out, you may be able to mitigate a

17      safety concern that I have that we will see if we

18      look, Victor, at Drawing L1.P, which was in the

19      -- it was one of the -- it was a March 28

20      landscape plan update.  So that was since our

21      last hearing.

22                 We're going to look at it somewhat

23      diagrammatically with respect to the curb cut

24      shown at this triangular area, and that's okay,
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1      but it's enough for me to -- if you could just

2      zoom in.

3                 MR. PANAK:  This is the sheet, right?

4                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Yeah, that's the --

5                 MR. PANAK:  I'm fairly sure because it

6      shows that curb right here.

7                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Yeah, that view is

8      fine.  Just hold it right there, Victor.  So for

9      the applicant team, if you look now -- this was

10      not something that we saw the last time, but

11      there are a pair of radius stones defining a curb

12      cut that says curb to be detailed and constructed

13      by owner at the triangular easement parcel.

14                 And what I'm focused on and what I have

15      safety questions about is the next section, which

16      is a little 10-foot long section of sidewalk

17      between the vehicle drive to the triangle and the

18      vehicle drive to the garage.  And the frontage of

19      this lot and the layout of the exit routes are

20      such that in the event of an emergency, every

21      single person in this building, whether they come

22      through the lobby or whether they come out the

23      other stair around the back of the building,

24      every single person will converge on that very
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1      small section of sidewalk between two live

2      driveways.

3                 And my concern, and I would urge the

4      design -- I mean, for many reasons, I would urge

5      the applicant team to consider ways to make that

6      landing space on the public sidewalk bigger in

7      the interest of the safety of the building's

8      occupants.

9                 It's quite unusual that -- this

10      building has a very small street frontage to

11      begin with, and then it just happens to be

12      necessary that the exit routes converge literally

13      right next to each other and on this little bit

14      of sidewalk.  And like I say, I don't think

15      you're going to be able to solve this tonight,

16      but I wanted you to be aware of my concern.

17                 MR. ENGLER:  Could I ask a question?

18                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Yes.

19                 MR. ENGLER:  I mean, I understand

20      vehicular passing of the driveway, but the

21      easement area, at most, probably would have one

22      vehicle at one time.  So I mean, to characterize

23      that as vehicles going in and out and that being

24      a safety concern, I mean, I would think that area
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1      would be actually a good area for people to

2      vacate the building and stay there, because I

3      would imagine most of the time, the overwhelming

4      amount of time, there's not going to be any

5      vehicles there, and there's certainly not going

6      to be, quote unquote, "traffic," I would think,

7      entering that easement area or leaving that

8      easement area.

9                 It's perfect for a delivery or a FedEx

10      truck or the like, but it's certainly not a

11      driveway with lots of commercial or residential

12      vehicles.  So we'll look at it, but I'm not sure

13      that -- it wasn't identified by your peer review

14      consultant, I don't think anyway, as a safety

15      issue.  Maybe I'm just not understanding the

16      concern.

17                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  It's true.  I don't

18      think Cliff raised -- you may have heard Cliff

19      and me talking.  We went to graduate school

20      together.  We're both architects.  I'm pretty

21      confident Cliff would not get in the way of me

22      raising this question.

23                 It's really straight out of the

24      building code, and it's absolutely the
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1      applicant's problem to solve if the applicant

2      thinks it's a problem.  But for the record, what

3      the building code says is that designated

4      exterior paths need to terminate at a public way.

5                 So I think the way that it has been

6      laid out so far is correct, and you basically

7      stay on your own property until you get to the

8      public way.  I'm just saying the space is small,

9      and I think the architect and the applicant need

10      to assess their own risk in this situation.

11      That's all.  Like I said, I don't expect it to be

12      solved this evening.

13                 MS. PALERMO:  Thank you, Randolph.  I

14      also raised questions about the use of this

15      parcel when I spoke with Victor about my comments

16      on the draft decision.  So we share concerns,

17      slightly different ones, but it's clearly

18      important to comply with the building code, but

19      also the neighborhood, that we have a good

20      understanding of how that temporary parking is

21      going to be provided.  And we'll get to that when

22      we're talking about the draft decision, but I

23      think there's a little bit of work to be done

24      there.
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1                 MR. GOLD:  Madame Chair, I guess -- let

2      me just make a brief comment, Madame Chair, if

3      you don't mind.

4                 MS. PALERMO:  Sure.

5                 MR. GOLD:  Jonathan Gold.  I don't see

6      where -- inasmuch as this was not part of the 40B

7      -- is not part of the locus, it was not part of

8      the application, why this is -- and I understand

9      Mr. Meiklejohn's concern.  I don't understand why

10      this is a sticking point for the board, where

11      we're providing something that otherwise if we

12      don't -- I mean, if we decide today that we're

13      just not going to -- we're not going to provide

14      it, then we'll put -- ship the delivery vehicles

15      to Bartlett Crescent, which is what every other

16      building does probably or on Bartlett Crescent.

17                 We just though that this would add an

18      amenity to the project without being part of the

19      project itself, and I'm hearing a different sort

20      of -- we're hearing a different sort of

21      conversation tonight.

22                 MS. PALERMO:  No, it absolutely is an

23      amenity that adds significantly to the project,

24      which I think leads us to be more inclined to
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1      grant the comprehensive permit, and as a result,

2      its proper documentation and safety is relevant

3      in this case.  Because you do have an easement to

4      that property, you have a legal right to use it,

5      and we're just trying to be sure that it is used

6      in a way, a, that is safe, which is the most

7      important part, and, b, that is clear.

8                 And it may be that we are not going to

9      have any significant revisions to this plan in

10      the next couple of weeks, but there needs to be

11      an understanding at some point as to what will

12      ultimately be documented and planned for that

13      piece of land for your easement use.

14                 And I recognize that the project is not

15      defined as including that tiny little piece of

16      land, but it is an enormous benefit that you have

17      it for a whole variety of reasons.  And it has

18      been discussed since early on, as I recall, in

19      this project the fact that you have an easement

20      over that land.

21                 MR. ENGLER:  Madame Chair, if I would,

22      I think one of the things, speaking for my

23      client, we would be comfortable is -- I think it

24      is our expectation over the next several months
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1      that we will have a more detailed plan from the

2      owners of Five Washington on that easement.

3                 So I believe we would be comfortable

4      with the condition that is not currently in the

5      draft decision that would require us to submit a

6      copy of that easement area as a prerequisite to

7      receiving the building permit so that the town is

8      clear on what will be going on with that area.

9                 And then, clearly, it's incumbent on

10      us, as Mr. Meiklejohn knows or the board or

11      anybody, we need to comply with all state

12      building codes.  So we'll need to look at that

13      little area that was referenced.  So I think

14      we're okay with that, if it makes the board feel

15      comfortable, that we can provide details that we

16      just -- are somewhat out of our control and that

17      we do not have, nor will we have, in the next few

18      weeks.

19                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Is it all right if I say

20      something, too, Madame Chair?

21                 MS. PALERMO:  Sure.

22                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Thank you.  I think when

23      we were talking about this and thinking about

24      this in more detail, the only real rights we have
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1      are what's described in that document, but we

2      have a relationship with these people.  We want

3      this to be safe.  We want it to be nice.

4                 I assume it doesn't harm them for that

5      to be the case.  But I'm not going to be able to

6      get them to do this on exactly the timeline I

7      want.  But a condition that said that we have to

8      provide a final landscape plan for this area

9      that's reasonable or a final -- some sort of

10      suitable landscaping plan would make total sense.

11      It's just a question of trying to do that as part

12      of this comprehensive permit process.

13                 I also just wanted to respond that we

14      did have our code consultant review the egress

15      paths, this plan, and under building code, he was

16      confident that it's satisfactory.  I also just

17      thought -- and I could show some pictures if it's

18      of interest contextually.  This is an issue, I

19      think, that is kind of endemic in the

20      neighborhood, or certainly on the block.

21                 I was there today looking at it and

22      taking a number of pictures, and basically

23      opposite us on the other side of Bartlett

24      Crescent, basically a whole stretch of the street
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1      from where the street turns to about a quarter of

2      the way or a third of the way down the street

3      past ten or twelve rowhouses is all curb cut

4      apron, with cement apron, and people just pull in

5      and out to their spaces in the back, and there's

6      no sidewalk.

7                 And that condition is extremely

8      prevalent.  It's almost everywhere on Bartlett

9      Crescent.  I think it's just sort of a conflict

10      of tight space, where people park, and how people

11      walk.  But you don't get the sense that it's

12      dangerous, that people are coming out and sort of

13      like stepping into a really busy road or

14      something.  It's very low traffic.  It would be

15      slow.  It's kind of intermingled with

16      pedestrians.

17                 So it doesn't seem to me that if

18      everyone had to come out of the building and come

19      into this area that they would be in harm's way

20      because of this easement.  But I think given the

21      limitations of our legal rights, our two choices

22      are to make a best effort to get this thing, you

23      know, to end up being approved by the neighbors

24      in the nicest and safest way possible, or to say
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1      if the board feels that this is -- having any

2      drop-off, delivery traffic added to this area

3      from our project is a safety issue, we could not

4      do it, as well.  But I don't think we could ever

5      tell the neighbors that they have to do anything

6      -- you know, we just have the benefit.  We can't

7      direct it 100 percent, one way or another.

8                 MS. PALERMO:  I didn't hear Randolph

9      saying that having an area that is located

10      somewhere in that easement area dedicated to

11      drop-off and pickup would in and of itself be

12      dangerous.  His concern was the location of the

13      curb cut in relationship to the location of the

14      curb cut -- tell me if I'm wrong, Randolph -- but

15      the driveway and the proximity of the two.  It

16      wasn't the use of the parcel.

17                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Yeah, thank you, Lark.

18      Just two comments, and then I'll stop, but just

19      because I started this.  First of all, I don't

20      mean to suggest that this issue is somehow fatal

21      for the permit process.  I think -- but I'm

22      really reacting to this drawing, which we had not

23      seen before.  This drawing is dated March 28.

24      That's since our last meeting.  And I hope you
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1      will take my questions with respect to design for

2      safety as intended as friendly and constructive.

3      That's how they're meant to be.  It's not really

4      that different from when we asked questions and

5      made suggestions about all those exterior ramps

6      that you had at the front of the building

7      previously, where I think you really resolved

8      that quite nicely.

9                 And to the extent that there are

10      opportunities, as you continue with the Five

11      Washington owners to manage the final design of

12      the sidewalk area that your exit routes discharge

13      onto, I hope you won't miss opportunities to

14      maximize them.

15                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Could I respond to that

16      as well, Madame Chair?

17                 MS. PALERMO:  Sure.

18                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  I appreciate that, and I

19      hear what you're saying, and I just want to

20      disentangle two things.  I think you're picking

21      up on my and my team's anxiety that an issue that

22      would take time and that we don't have -- when

23      it's our entrance system, subject to building

24      code and all of our constraints, we were able to
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1      redesign and take total ownership over the entry

2      system for the building, and very much

3      appreciated you calling it out, because I feel

4      like I had sort of gotten tunnel vision on it at

5      the point, and I just hadn't even -- I'd lost

6      sight of it as a problem that needed to be

7      solved, and revisiting it was very helpful.

8                 But the anxiety I think that you're

9      hearing is that we hope to have some good

10      influence on this process.  But we can't

11      guarantee it, and it's certainly not something

12      that's going to happen on a tight timeline.  So

13      it's very concerning on our end if the conclusion

14      of the comprehensive permit process requires a

15      final answer on this.

16                 But on the other hand, to the extent --

17      and I've been quite successful in negotiating

18      with the Five Washington developers, which is why

19      we have this opportunity.  To the extent that it

20      doesn't really hurt them to respond to our

21      feedback and that it could really be of benefit

22      aesthetically and practically to have it as nice

23      as it can be, I'm going to make a huge effort to

24      influence the process and get the best result
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1      that I can for the project.

2                 But I do think it's something that the

3      results of and submitting the results of that to

4      the town would be more ideally put as a condition

5      to a building permit.  And then I think maybe we

6      even are going to contribute to the costs if that

7      helps our negotiation with the neighbors and

8      developers, but it has to be worked out.

9                 And the way that the curb cut is shown

10      now -- we had to get under the sort of

11      construction area just to map it out and figure

12      it out to give you this accurate drawing.  But

13      the way that it's shown now, the bounds of the

14      curb cut on the far side of the easement, that's

15      what's there now, and the curb cut just actually

16      extended even beyond where we're showing that it

17      ends all the way across the entry of our

18      building, and we're showing what we're planning

19      to do to scale it back a bit.  But it is sort of

20      an off property existing condition, which is what

21      we've been trying to just make sure is

22      understood.

23                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Sure.  Speaking for

24      myself, not for the board, I'm going back to Mr.
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1      Engler's proposed condition and the language that

2      he suggested for it.  I would be comfortable with

3      that, and I think it would be a reasonable way to

4      continue going forward.

5                 MS. PALERMO:  Thank you, Randolph.  I

6      actually agree with you on that point, too.  I

7      think that may be a sufficient way to resolve

8      this.

9                 Do we have any other questions from

10      board members on these updates, because if not,

11      I'm going to move on to comments on the draft

12      decision.

13                 MR. PANAK:  Is this zoomed in far

14      enough for everybody?  Can you read the writing?

15                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Yes.

16                 MR. BELL:  Yes.

17                 MS. PALERMO:  So as I said, my plan is

18      to go through each page and see if the board has

19      any comments.  It's been -- and I don't know if

20      the copy you're showing notes the comments and

21      additions and requests by the applicant as well.

22      It will show up on the screen?

23                 MR. PANAK:  Yeah.  So this version is

24      based on the original draft.  It shows track
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1      changes to that original draft by me, as I

2      reviewed my own work; by Dan Bennett, the

3      building commissioner; Virginia Bullock, the

4      senior housing planner; Polly Selkoe, the

5      assistant director for regulatory planning; and

6      Kara Brewton, the planning director.

7                 So those are shown in track changes,

8      and then in the margin, in sort of a comment

9      form, you'll see requested changes from the

10      applicant.  So the comments will highlight a

11      portion of the decision, and then in the comment,

12      it will show what the applicant is suggesting as

13      alternative language.

14                 MS. PALERMO:  So the plan would be to

15      go page by page.  Board members can make

16      comments, suggestions, additions, suggested

17      revisions.  The applicant or counsel for the

18      applicant can weigh in, and we'll dedicate as

19      much time as it takes to get through this

20      document tonight and see how many of these issues

21      can get resolved.

22                 So starting with Page 1, great place to

23      start, I do have a suggestion, and I'll start

24      with myself and then go to board members, since I
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1      have a few different suggestions that I think

2      should be included.

3                 I had redrafted Paragraphs 3 and 4 by

4      merging them and reducing the amount of text,

5      because as I'm sure Mr. Gold would agree, rather

6      than spending a lot of time characterizing the

7      agreement, legally, the agreement is what

8      prevails, and I thought it was really in

9      everyone's interest to sort of condense --

10      include the salient points, but condense it.

11                 So this is what I had proposed.  "A

12      public hearing was not opened within the required

13      30 days following the July 8, 2021 application

14      date.  However, the Town of Brookline and the

15      applicant subsequently entered into an agreement,

16      which provides, among other things, as follows.

17                 "One, the town was not entitled to the

18      benefits of any so-called safe harbors or

19      statutory minima set forth in Chapter 40B or 60

20      CMR 5.603 on the date of the application; that

21      applicant waived any claim of constructive

22      approval of the project; and 3, the parties would

23      schedule a hearing to open on a date not later

24      than September 30, 2021."
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1                 MR. ENGLER:  That replaces 3 and 4,

2      right?

3                 MS. PALERMO:  Yeah.  I just want to

4      clarify --

5                 MR. PANAK:  Yes, it would replace 3 and

6      4.

7                 MS. PALERMO:  We need to delete 3 and

8      4.  So this could be paragraph --

9                 MR. PANAK:  Yeah, I don't want to

10      delete it, because I want people to compare the

11      language, that's all.  But yes, that would --

12                 MS. PALERMO:  But that would be

13      deleted, and this would be Paragraph 3.

14                 MR. PANAK:  Yeah.  Sorry if that caused

15      confusion for people.

16                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  May I make just one

17      small comment, Madame Chair?

18                 MS. PALERMO:  Of course.

19                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  That seems right to me.

20      The only thing -- I'm not sure if it really

21      matters to clarify, but the applicant waived its

22      claim of a constructive approval due to the

23      expiration of the 30-day period or something, but

24      didn't blanket waive any claim for a constructive
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1      approval that would arise at another part of the

2      process.

3                 MS. PALERMO:  That's a very reasonable

4      request.  So we would put in "waived its claim of

5      constructive approval based on" -- let me see, it

6      might take -- let me see.  I need my glasses for

7      this.

8                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  This is hard work

9                 MS. PALERMO:  This is where the rubber

10      hits the road in many requests -- respects, I

11      should say.

12                 MR. PANAK:  It should say "based on

13      the" --

14                 MR. GOLD:  (Inaudible) failure to hold

15      a first public hearing within 30 days.

16                 MS. PALERMO:  Yeah, I'd say the town's

17      failure to hold a public hearing within the 30-

18      day time period.  That's fine.

19                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Thank you.

20                 MS. PALERMO:  So board members, any

21      comments on Page 1, in addition to that one?

22      Randolph?

23                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Yeah.  Just in Number

24      2, I think the number of parking spaces is
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1      incorrect.  It says (inaudible) elsewhere in the

2      decision.

3                 MR. PANAK:  So it's not incorrect in

4      the sense that this is a procedural history and

5      the original application at 27 Bartlett Crescent.

6                 MR. ENGLER:  That's correct.

7                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  So it changes later

8      on.

9                 MR. ENGLER:  That was the original

10      filing.

11                 MS. PALERMO:  Paul Bell?

12                 MR. BELL:  No comments.

13                 MS. PALERMO:  So moving on to Page 2,

14      which is the essentially list of plans, drawings,

15      landscape drawings, etcetera, I don't have a

16      comment.  Randolph, Paul?

17                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  No.

18                 MR. BELL:  My standard comment is just

19      making sure that we have the right plan set

20      listed.  That's the actual (inaudible).

21                 MS. PALERMO:  I think that is a

22      reasonable one.  I did make note that if plans

23      had been revised, we want to double check and

24      make sure, Victor, that that's referenced.  So in
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1      other words, if we have a plan that's dated March

2      23, but it got revised April 5, we should make

3      sure we say that for the final --

4                 MR. PANAK:  Well, I usually list the

5      date.  So if a plan says originally February 1,

6      revised March 23, I will say dated March 23.

7                 MS. PALERMO:  Well, that is actually

8      not the way I would prefer you do it, because

9      it's better to have a record of the fact that we

10      started with one, and we moved to another and

11      concluded.  So yeah, I would revise that.  I was

12      wondering.  I thought, really, plans haven't been

13      revised?

14                 MR. PANAK:  That's how I used to do it

15      in Wellesley, and then coming to Brookline, no

16      one said dated X date and revised Y date.  So I

17      kind of just adopted the new methodology.

18                 MS. PALERMO:  Well, that's actually my

19      preference.  I think that's a better way to do

20      it.

21                 Moving on to Page 3, I had -- this is a

22      comment that does require a revision date, which

23      is the request for waivers, because we got a

24      revision on the 8th of April.  I believe it's the
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1      8th.

2                 MR. ENGLER:  April 7, I believe.

3                 MS. PALERMO:  Or 7th, okay.

4                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Madame Chair?

5                 MS. PALERMO:  Yes.

6                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  I did want to bring this

7      up at some point, so now seems right.  So we

8      actually -- John sent over one more revision.  We

9      had inadvertently left off one waiver.  That came

10      on April 11, yesterday, right, John?

11                 MR. GOLD:  Yeah, that was the last

12      sheet of the waiver, which didn't go through.  It

13      was the demolition bylaw, and that should be on

14      the very last sheet of the waiver list.

15                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  So our latest revision

16      would actually be the April 11 version of the

17      waivers.

18                 MR. GOLD:  Victor, I think you have

19      that, no?

20                 MR. PANAK:  I do, and it very, very

21      well may be revised again.  So I'll just make

22      sure to keep this date updated.

23                 MS. PALERMO:  Great.  Thank you.  The

24      second comment I have is that I think we need a
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1      paragraph -- I would probably put it right after

2      that paragraph -- about the waivers, that the

3      board conducted a duly noticed site visit on what

4      I think was October 8 -- or 4, 2021.  That's what

5      my calendar says.  A duly noticed second visit.

6                 MR. PANAK:  October 4, 8:30.  Was it

7      Monday at 8:30?

8                 MS. PALERMO:  Yes.  And then the last

9      one I have on this page is in what is currently

10      Paragraph 11, and it is the second line up from

11      the bottom, and the phrase "occurring in the

12      ground plane," because that didn't convey

13      anything to me, so I suggested deleting it.

14      Those are my comments on Page 3.  Randolph?

15                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  No comments on Page 3.

16                 MS. PALERMO:  Paul Bell?

17                 MR. BELL:  No comments.

18                 MS. PALERMO:  Page 4.  I have -- let me

19      see -- one comment on Page 4, and that is in

20      Paragraph 3, the determination in the PEL by

21      Mass. Housing, I thought should also include that

22      it's eligible under the requirements of the New

23      England Fund Program of the Federal Home Loan

24      Bank of Boston, but it's generally eligible --
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1      somehow putting in that 25 percent of the units

2      will be available to households earning at or

3      below 80 percent of area median income.  We'll

4      just put "and that 25 percent of the units will

5      be available to households earning at or below 80

6      percent of area median income."

7                 MR. ENGLER:  Usually they say "up to."

8      "At or below" is fine.  "At or below" is fine.

9      Yeah, it's fine.

10                 MS. PALERMO:  Yeah, adjusted for

11      household size, as established by HUD.

12                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Lark, that language,

13      is it meant to be similar -- very similar to

14      Condition Number 4, but you just wanted it as a

15      finding?

16                 MS. PALERMO:  This language is actually

17      just intended to reflect what's in the PEL.

18                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Yeah, okay.

19                 MS. PALERMO:  In other words, why Mass.

20      Housing determined this project to be eligible,

21      and one of --

22                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Condition 4 should

23      reflect this language just because Mass. Housing

24      issued a PEL letter -- or a PEL for this project,

Page 52

1-800-727-6396 Veritext Legal Solutions www.veritext.com



1      and it hasn't really changed in that sense from

2      what we're going to (inaudible).

3                 MR. ENGLER:  I would just say this.  I

4      mean, we're comfortable with Madame Chair's

5      language, but if the board just referenced the

6      PEL -- I mean, we were found eligible for many

7      reasons, and required to do 25 percent of the

8      units per household earning up to 80, but we're

9      required to do lots of other things, too.  But

10      we're fine with this language.  But as you guys

11      noted, Number 4 also is similar, but there's

12      nothing wrong with some redundancy.

13                 MS. PALERMO:  Does anyone else --

14      Randolph, do you have any comments on this page?

15                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  I think I had a few

16      little things that I think Victor has already

17      picked up.  Victor, can you scroll to 8?  I just

18      saw some typos and things.

19                 MR. PANAK:  Yeah.

20                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  I'm all set.

21                 MS. PALERMO:  And Paul Bell?

22                 MR. BELL:  All set.

23                 MS. PALERMO:  Page 5.

24                 MR. PANAK:  Sorry.  One moment, Lark.
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1      Randolph did send me some edits earlier today.

2      Randolph, I did not incorporate your edits.  I

3      just looked them over.  Oh, I just need to

4      incorporate them.

5                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  You put at least one

6      of them.  These are just little spelling things,

7      Victor.  That's okay.

8                 MR. PANAK:  No, I guess I did

9      incorporate at least some of them.

10                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  That's fine.  I'll

11      pause if there's anything that I feel strongly

12      about, but we can carry on.

13                 MR. PANAK:  The public restaurant as

14      well.

15                 MS. PALERMO:  So Page 5 I felt we

16      should add another finding, because it does

17      become relevant later on, and I gave Victor

18      language that I thought could be added as a new

19      Paragraph 12 -- or 13.  It would be new 13,

20      looking at this now.  So Victor, you should have

21      that language.  It's in a Word document.  You can

22      just copy it and paste it, and there we go.

23                 So my suggestion is that we add in,

24      because I just want to make this abundantly
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1      clear, as a finding that -- because there seemed

2      to be a request that we acknowledge that this

3      tree needs to be removed, and this is governed by

4      state law.  And I reviewed the law, and we don't

5      have any authority to do anything about this law.

6                 It sets forth the process for removal

7      of street trees, and so I consider that to be a

8      finding.  And I welcome input from my fellow

9      board members about this if you have opinions,

10      but there's a very specific process set forth in

11      Chapter 87 of Mass. General Laws, and as I said,

12      my opinion is we don't have authority to do

13      anything about that process.

14                 MR. BELL:  Sounds reasonable to me.

15                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Yeah, no objection,

16      Lark.

17                 MS. PALERMO:  Then any other comments

18      on this page from the board?  Randolph?

19                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Victor, just go back

20      to the last line of Paragraph 11.  After the word

21      "indicate" -- that was just a spelling

22      correction.  It should be "indicate the right

23      turn only condition."

24                 So that's one, and then as you can see
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1      from the markup in Number 10 -- we should just

2      get this over with because it's going to run

3      throughout the document -- possessive pronouns.

4                 We have "their" being corrected to

5      "his," and maybe there's some "theirs" that are

6      standing, and I had a hunch that possibly the use

7      of "their" had crept in -- had been included as a

8      proposal for inclusive language, and can anybody

9      shed light on that?

10                 MS. PALERMO:  Well, I'm the one that

11      corrected it for grammatical reasons.

12                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Well, grammar is a

13      little dynamic in this area.  So Victor, can you

14      -- do you have a comment?

15                 MS. PALERMO:  Yes, although I believe

16      that Cliff Boehmer uses the pronouns "he" and

17      "his," but if you'd feel better with us checking

18      on that, we could.

19                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  I would feel better

20      with consistency.

21                 MS. PALERMO:  Well, I agree.

22                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  I don't have a strong

23      opinion about checking.

24                 MS. PALERMO:  Well, the use of pronouns
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1      that you're identifying is a potential issue.  I

2      would ordinarily go with what is grammatically

3      correct.  So if there are other places you've

4      noticed that -- I just happened to pick it up

5      here, Randolph.

6                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Let's leave it at

7      that.

8                 MR. PANAK:  I don't have a preference

9      one way or another.  I wrote this paragraph, and

10      the reason I used "their" is because it refers in

11      my mind to the noun "independent design peer

12      reviewer," which I don't think has a gender,

13      which is why I wrote it that way.  But I'm fine

14      with either writing, and we can look for making

15      sure it's consistent as we go through.

16                 MS. PALERMO:  Okay.

17                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Lark, happy to have

18      you make the call on this one.  I don't need to

19      take up hearing time for it.

20                 MS. PALERMO:  Thank you.  Paul Bell, do

21      you have comments on this page?

22                 MR. BELL:  Just one.  I wish I could

23      claim credit for it, but Microsoft Word has said

24      that "maneuvers" is not spelled right at the end
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1      of Paragraph 12.

2                 MS. PALERMO:  Good point.

3                 MR. BELL:  And it looked British.

4                 MR. PANAK:  I did go to school at a

5      British school in France.  I also spell colors

6      with a U.

7                 MR. BELL:  It's very elegant.

8                 MS. PALERMO:  So moving on to Page 7,

9      my comment on -- wait a minute.  Is this Page 7?

10      No.  Never mind.

11                 MR. ENGLER:  6.

12                 MS. PALERMO:  Oh, no.  No, we're not on

13      7, are we?

14                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  I think we're on Page

15      6.

16                 MR. PANAK:  We're on 6.

17                 MR. BELL:  We're at the bottom of Page

18      6 where it says "decision" maybe.

19                 MS. PALERMO:  I'm sorry.  I'm doing

20      this with paper, and I must have skipped a page

21      and went ahead.

22                 MR. ENGLER:  Well, the pagination got

23      moved a little because we've added some language.

24      So the decision previously was on 5.  Now, it's
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1      on 6.

2                 MR. PANAK:  Yeah, we have to keep that

3      in mind as we go along.

4                 MS. PALERMO:  Yes.

5                 MR. BELL:  I think we're at Conditions,

6      right?

7                 MR. ENGLER:  Yes.

8                 MS. PALERMO:  I believe we are starting

9      Conditions, correct.  So do we get to Paragraph 7

10      on this page under Housing?  No, that's the next

11      page.  Well, then I don't have any comments on

12      this page.  Randolph?

13                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Yes, just the very

14      last line -- the second line of Paragraph 5.  I

15      think the word "proscribed" should be changed to

16      "prescribed."

17                 MS. PALERMO:  Yes.

18                 MR. ENGLER:  Correct.

19                 MR. PANAK:  All set?

20                 MS. PALERMO:  Paul Bell?

21                 MR. BELL:  I'm good.

22                 MS. PALERMO:  Now we're moving on to

23      Page 7.  So I have on Paragraph 9 -- that's

24      interesting, I didn't have that as -- I see.
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1      It's red now.

2                 What I was suggesting is that the word

3      "shall not" -- in the first line, "affordable

4      home ownership units shall not be rented or

5      leased, except in extenuating circumstances, with

6      the express written permission from both the

7      subsidizing agency and the town's director of

8      planning and community development."

9                 "If any of the affordable home

10      ownership" -- we might as well stick with our one

11      word of home ownership, especially in the same

12      paragraph for a little consistency.  "Units are,"

13      and here I would add "permitted to be rented or

14      leased.  All leases," plural, "and occupancy

15      agreements shall be for terms of not less than

16      six months."

17                 I recommend, unless someone can

18      enlighten me -- this is a little hard to follow

19      what was intended here, and I would simply

20      recommend all these references to extensions be

21      deleted, because I'm not sure what the purpose

22      is.  I think it's pretty clear that the occupancy

23      agreement or lease would have to be for a term of

24      not less than six months, and I don't see any
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1      reason that we have to get into extensions.  But

2      Randolph, Paul, Victor?

3                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Well, Lark, if you

4      remove the references to extensions, is it the

5      same as saying you just -- you regard an

6      extension as just a modification of the agreement

7      that doesn't -- it doesn't conflict with the

8      terms that you're leaving in the paragraph?

9                 MS. PALERMO:  Correct.

10                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  I'm okay with that.

11                 MR. BELL:  If any of the affordable

12      home ownership units are rented or leased, I

13      think it should just be a rented or leased --

14      such agreements -- I think it should just be

15      "such agreements."  The thing about occupancy

16      agreements, because there's use and occupancy

17      agreements when you sell homes --

18                 MS. PALERMO:  Correct.  Correct.

19                 MR. BELL:  -- and that should be

20      allowed for less than six months, because usually

21      they're for 30 days or 60 days.

22                 MS. PALERMO:  Yeah, but no.  I think in

23      this case, it's very clear that it would have to

24      also be six months.  I mean, the intent of this
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1      paragraph, which I think is a reasonable one, is

2      to stop short-term rentals, and that would

3      include an occupancy agreement for 30 days.  I

4      think we're trying to --

5                 MR. BELL:  I'm just suggesting that in

6      the case of a sale, if somebody is trying to sell

7      a unit, if there's a conveyance of a unit,

8      sometimes the seller wants to remain in the unit

9      for a period of time to make the deal work.  It

10      might just be -- I just don't see the benefit of

11      preventing that.

12                 MS. PALERMO:  Well, that's a fairly

13      unusual situation, and I actually think because

14      these are affordable units, it's important to be

15      as clear as possible what the intent is.  And I

16      guess my reaction is I don't disagree with you

17      that occasionally sellers do that.

18                 Most real estate lawyers, as you know,

19      would recommend to buyers that they not agree to

20      it, but I think it's perfectly fair to say to the

21      owners of these units that they're not for short-

22      term rental, period.  They're not for -- I mean,

23      it may be that our town has -- I don't know, have

24      we passed a bylaw now prohibiting nightly
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1      rentals, Victor?

2                 MR. PANAK:  We have.

3                 MS. PALERMO:  So some of this will be

4      covered by our local bylaws, but --

5                 MR. ENGLER:  I could say this, Madame

6      Chair.  We have no issue with the language you've

7      proposed, but I would also say the regulatory

8      agreement and the deed restriction specifically

9      prohibits what you guys are trying to address --

10                 MS. PALERMO:  Yes.

11                 MR. ENGLER:  -- on the affordable side.

12      So this is just belt and suspenders, as far as

13      I'm concerned.  Even if you didn't have this

14      language, it wouldn't be allowed, but we're

15      comfortable with you putting it in, but feel

16      reassured that the regulatory agreement and all

17      of the rigorous documentation that occurs upon a

18      resale will also protect the town's interests.

19                 MS. PALERMO:  Thank you.  I agree with

20      you the regulatory agreement will include this,

21      but I think it's also beneficial.  It is belts

22      and suspenders, I don't disagree, but

23      occasionally, those aren't a bad thing to have.

24      I think we'll leave it for now, and you and I can
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1      discuss this later if you want to talk about it

2      more, Paul.  Other comments?

3                 MR. BELL:  If the applicant is happy

4      with the language, then I'm happy with it.

5                 MS. PALERMO:  Okay.  That's all my

6      comments on Page 7.  Randolph, do you have

7      anything?

8                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Nothing else.

9                 MS. PALERMO:  Paul?

10                 MR. BELL:  No, I'm good.

11                 MR. PANAK:  The applicant did have this

12      requested change for Condition 12.  "The town

13      will not issue a building permit for the project

14      without approval from the subsidizing agency

15      they're proposing the change to.  The town will

16      not issue a building permit for the project

17      without the applicant providing evidence of final

18      approval from the subsidizing agency."  From the

19      staff side, we have no issue with this change.

20                 MS. PALERMO:  I don't have an issue

21      with it.  Does anyone else?

22                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  That seems fine.

23                 MS. PALERMO:  Actually, Victor, I

24      realized now our pages changed a little bit.  I
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1      do have another comment on this page.  It's

2      Paragraph 7.

3                 MR. PANAK:  One second.

4                 MS. PALERMO:  Sure.

5                 MR. PANAK:  Paragraph 7.

6                 MS. PALERMO:  Paragraph 7.  This says,

7      "The affordable units shall be disbursed

8      throughout the project and shall have the same

9      bedroom ratio or mix as the other units in the

10      project," and I wanted to add to that "and also

11      finishes as the other units in the project."

12                 MR. ENGLER:  Wait a sec.  I'm not sure

13      we're comfortable with that.  That's not a

14      requirement.  What if a market buyer upgrades

15      their finishes?  I mean, if they're affordable,

16      and some market buyer decides they want to have

17      Viking appliances upgraded, we shouldn't be

18      subject to provide Viking appliances to the

19      affordable units.  I mean, so I'm concerned by

20      that addition.  I don't think we're comfortable

21      with that.

22                 MS. PALERMO:  I understand your point,

23      and I think we should be able to come up with

24      language that carves out the right of market
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1      buyers to --

2                 MR. PANAK:  But if you set up the time

3      of the certificate of occupancy, the finishes

4      have to be the same.

5                 MS. PALERMO:  Well, sometimes market

6      buyer will do it beforehand.

7                 MR. ENGLER:  Yeah, exactly.

8                 MS. PALERMO:  In other words, if the

9      countertops were going to be linoleum, a market

10      buyer could come in before they put the counters

11      in and say no, I want granite.  So I think we

12      could prepare it for something like same bedroom

13      ratio or mix and the --

14                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  What about just

15      standard subsidized finishes?  I think "standard"

16      is the word you want.

17                 MR. BELL:  And then just put

18      parenthesis "not including buyer upgrades."

19                 MS. PALERMO:  There you go.  Perfect.

20                 MR. PANAK:  So what's the exact

21      language?

22                 MR. GOLD:  Standard finishes.

23                 MR. ENGLER:  For standard and standard

24      finishes or base package finishes.
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1                 MS. PALERMO:  Yeah, yeah.

2                 MR. PANAK:  Base package or standard?

3                 MR. ENGLER:  I would say base package.

4                 MR. GOLD:  Standard and/or base.

5                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  You could put "base

6      package" in parenthesis.

7                 MR. BELL:  Well, you're already putting

8      that including buyer upgrades in parentheses.

9      Are you going to specify finishes in your place?

10      I think base or standard base finishes or

11      something like that is fine.

12                 MS. PALERMO:  You're okay with that,

13      Paul?

14                 MR. BELL:  I am.

15                 MS. PALERMO:  Randolph?

16                 MS. PALERMO:  Yes.  Now, I'll ask again

17      if anybody else has any comments on Page -- what

18      is now Page 7.

19                 MR. PANAK:  Well, Lark, how about I say

20      from Condition 5 through 14?

21                 MS. PALERMO:  Yeah, that's the best way

22      to do it.

23                 MR. PANAK:  Because we're going to

24      start getting very deviated on the page numbers.
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1                 MS. PALERMO:  You're absolutely right.

2      That makes much more sense.  So any more comments

3      on Conditions 5 through 14?

4                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  No.

5                 MR. PANAK:  The next set is 15 through

6      21.

7                 MS. PALERMO:  I have one comment on 19,

8      and that is four lines down.  "The applicant

9      shall provide a final construction management

10      plan that shall" -- and here I would add in "be

11      in conformance with the draft construction

12      management plan dated February 15, 2021" and

13      attached as exhibit whatever it will be.

14                 MR. PANAK:  Actually, it lists it in

15      the plan set of record documents.

16                 MS. PALERMO:  And listed in -- what

17      section is it listed in, Section --

18                 MR. ENGLER:  Madame Chair, just so we

19      understand, and I think this says that, when you

20      mean conformance, you mean the topics or the

21      areas covered?  You don't mean the actual

22      information, which is obviously going to be

23      updated once we have the benefit of the general

24      contractor?
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1                 MS. PALERMO:  Yes, yes, yes, yes.  And

2      as I think you are aware, I know the building

3      commissioner was happy with this, and we're

4      happy.  So we're happy with it, but clearly, it's

5      not your final.  It's a draft.

6                 MR. ENGLER:  Right.  So it will be in

7      conformance with the sections, but it will be

8      updated with additional details, and there may be

9      some changes, which will be reviewed and

10      approved.

11                 MS. PALERMO:  Right.  That's between

12      you and the building commissioner.

13                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Me and the building

14      commissioner.

15                 MS. PALERMO:  That's all I had.  I see

16      there is also a comment from the applicant.

17                 MR. PANAK:  It's the addition of

18      "estimated number of necessary truck trips," so

19      just the number of necessary truck trips, which I

20      believe makes sense.

21                 MS. PALERMO:  I think so, too.  Board,

22      do you have comments on that?

23                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Yes, I agree.  That's

24      okay.
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1                 MS. PALERMO:  Paul?

2                 MR. BELL:  I'm good with it.

3                 MS. PALERMO:  Any other comments on

4      conditions through Number 21?

5                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  I've got a couple in

6      17.  Victor, this is part of what I sent you last

7      night, but just simplifying and getting onto

8      Lark's style book, Line 2 of Number 17, I think

9      instead of "subject to," it's more consistent

10      with the other conditions to say "for his review

11      and approval."  "For" instead of "subject."  I

12      don't want to use that word.

13                 MR. PANAK:  "Subject for his review"?

14                 MS. PALERMO:  Take out "subject."  Take

15      out 2 and put in 4.

16                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Thank you.  And then

17      just a little one in 19.  On the second line,

18      "Approval by the building commissioner, the

19      director of engineering and transportation."

20      It's missing "the."  And then my next one is in

21      22, so I'm done here.

22                 MS. PALERMO:  Paul, do you have any

23      comments on these?

24                 MR. BELL:  No.
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1                 MS. PALERMO:  So now we go from 22

2      through --

3                 MR. PANAK:  26.

4                 MS. PALERMO:  -- through 26, okay.  I

5      see there's comments on 28 and 29, and the

6      applicant has requested changes.  And my comment

7      is that this phrase, "Prior to commencement of

8      any site work, the applicant determines that

9      blasting is necessary," I don't --

10                 MR. PANAK:  Wait, wait, wait, Lark.  I

11      think you're talking about 28 there.  We're on

12      22.

13                 MS. PALERMO:  Oh, I'm on 22.  I'm

14      sorry.  I'm still doing it page by page.  Sorry

15      about that.  It's a very lengthy comment, and I

16      had communicated with Victor that -- yes, I had

17      communicated with Victor that this is not

18      something I have developed.  It's a conceptual

19      difference of opinion, and I don't have an

20      opinion.  So Victor, did you want to express --

21                 MR. PANAK:  Yeah.  Can I jump in on

22      this?

23                 MS. PALERMO:  You sure can.

24                 MR. PANAK:  So this condition, as well
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1      as, I believe, I want to say 39, are two new

2      practices the town will be requiring construction

3      projects in Brookline with a policy related to

4      construction management, specifically geared

5      towards informing abutters of the construction

6      project for large developments.

7                 So Condition 22 is about setting up a

8      web page that provides contact information,

9      information on upcoming construction activities,

10      a link to the 40B decision, things like that.

11      And then Condition Number 39 is about the

12      applicant hosting a minimum of two neighborhood

13      meetings for construction season, which for

14      anyone who doesn't know, that's defined -- I

15      checked with the building commissioner because I

16      didn't know this -- is really just defined as a

17      year.

18                 So it's two meetings per year open to

19      the general public for abutters to come and

20      communicate with the developer and ask questions

21      on the progress of construction.  The town is

22      very interested in keeping both conditions, with

23      a preference for Condition Number 22.  I think

24      that's where I'll leave it for now.

Page 72

1-800-727-6396 Veritext Legal Solutions www.veritext.com



1                 MR. ENGLER:  Do you want to tell us

2      when we can respond, Madame Chair?

3                 MS. PALERMO:  Sure, yes.  If the board

4      members have opinions they would like to express

5      about this, then I think you should certainly

6      explain what your position is.  I don't hear -- I

7      don't see any.

8                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  I can wait.

9                 MS. PALERMO:  So go ahead, Jeff.

10                 MR. ENGLER:  I think we're comfortable

11      with 39.  We're not comfortable with 22.  The

12      fact of the matter is these are not bylaws.

13      They're not on the town requirements now.

14      They're not required of other people doing

15      development in Brookline.  They haven't been

16      required of other 40B developments.

17                 I have five different developments

18      going on in other towns, Winchester, Scituate.

19      There's no website requirements.  Those are much,

20      much bigger and intense projects.

21                 The intent and what we've committed to

22      is we would be happy to have neighborhood

23      outreach, to have a community liaison to provide

24      three-week look ahead schedules, but a website to
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1      us seems like an overstatement.  It's not been

2      required of other 40Bs.  It's not required if I

3      was to go and build a house in Brookline in a

4      two-family.  I wouldn't need a website.

5                 As the board is aware, legally, we have

6      to be treated like other applications that are

7      going for building permits.  So we'd be

8      comfortable with 39.  We'd be comfortable with

9      our proposed language for 22, which is like a

10      supplement to 39.  But the website and web page

11      just seems unnecessary to us.

12                 MS. PALERMO:  Thank you.  Randolph, you

13      had a comment?

14                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  It's just a very minor

15      thing, but it's going to come up when we get to

16      the waiver list.  The term "developer," which is

17      in the applicant's requested wording, is not a

18      defined term within the decision.  I wonder

19      whether it should be "applicant," which is

20      defined.

21                 MS. PALERMO:  Sure.

22                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  That's within the

23      comment paragraph.

24                 MS. PALERMO:  Oh, I see.  I see, yes,
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1      and there's another place where it would need to

2      be capitalized.  I didn't pick that up, but yes,

3      of course.  Do you have an opinion about this

4      provision?

5                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  I've heard the -- I

6      think the applicant's request is a reasonable

7      one.  I don't think I would insist on the web

8      page.

9                 MS. PALERMO:  Thank you.  Paul Bell?

10                 MR. BELL:  So I just wanted to be

11      clear.  There were some statements made that I'm

12      not clear on.  Is it not some sort of ordinance

13      or regulation that we have passed, it's a policy

14      that's been issued, or what is it exactly?

15                 MR. PANAK:  Yes.  So there is no --

16      there are no regulations or bylaws requiring this

17      at this time.  I know, at the very least, it's

18      going to be a joint policy from the planning and

19      building department coming in the next couple of

20      months.  It may even be a bylaw change at an

21      upcoming town meeting session.

22                 MR. BELL:  To become a policy, the

23      board would have to adopt it, right, as a policy?

24                 MR. PANAK:  The department is going to
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1      adopt their policies, but yeah.

2                 MR. BELL:  But they're not currently

3      adopted?

4                 MR. PANAK:  They are not currently

5      active, no.

6                 MR. BELL:  I think I'm with Randolph

7      that that substituted language seems reasonable,

8      and I'd be comfortable with it.

9                 MS. PALERMO:  Thank you.  I agree.

10      We'll just make sure we change "developer" to

11      "applicant," with a capital A, and where

12      "applicant" is referenced in the middle of the

13      paragraph with a small A, we'll make it a capital

14      A.

15                 MR. PANAK:  I'm just going to add a few

16      things.  I don't know if you want to capitalize

17      this, since it's not necessarily a defined term,

18      right, construction manager, supervisor?

19                 MS. PALERMO:  Well, I don't think it

20      needs to be capitalized.

21                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Victor, can I ask, in

22      the beginning of that paragraph, when you

23      inserted "building commissioner and director of

24      planning and community development," are you
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1      going towards applicant shall provide for their

2      review and approval before it actually gets

3      disseminated to the community?  What's the

4      meaning of those?

5                 MR. PANAK:  We can add "for their

6      review and approval."  I don't necessarily think

7      that's needed, but the language before I added

8      that in said, "The applicant shall provide a

9      planned community strategy for outreach," and it

10      doesn't indicate providing to whom.  So I just

11      added that in.

12                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  When you added those

13      town officials, I think you actually changed the

14      meaning of what the applicant had proposed here,

15      because without those -- it says the applicant

16      would provide information in the community, and I

17      want to make sure we don't lose track of that,

18      because I thought that was a good faith

19      suggestion on the applicant's part.

20                 MR. PANAK:  Understood.  How about,

21      "shall provide a planned community strategy for

22      outreach to the" -- I think this is where we want

23      to put it.  So the building commissioner --

24                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  And also informing
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1      these parties of the same, or something like

2      that.  I mean, unless you want to put an approval

3      threshold on it, which I'm not sure is necessary.

4                 MR. PANAK:  No.  So I think the idea

5      here is, "The applicant will provide a planned

6      community strategy for outreach to the building

7      commissioner, the director of planning and

8      community development, and a neighborhood

9      distribution list," which I think should be

10      provided by the town, and that neighborhood

11      distribution list shall include -- sorry.  I may

12      be over complicating this.

13                 MR. ENGLER:  The plan for a community

14      strategy -- wait.  It's a little funky.  It

15      sounds like it's a plan for outreach to the

16      building commissioner and director of planning,

17      and that's not -- it's a plan for our outreach to

18      the neighborhood, and to a lesser degree the

19      town, and we're providing the plan to the

20      building commissioner and the director, basically

21      to say this is how we're going to go about doing

22      it.

23                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Victor, how about

24      this, how about -- just listen for a second.
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1      "Prior to commencement of construction and with

2      information provided to these town officials, the

3      applicant shall provide the community

4      information."

5                 MR. ENGLER:  Or we can say, yeah, and

6      with copy to the director of planning and

7      community development.

8                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  It's --

9                 MR. PANAK:  We could also break it up.

10      We could say, "Prior to commencement of

11      construction, the applicant shall provide a

12      planned community strategy for outreach to the

13      building commissioner and planning director.

14      Such planned community strategy for outreach

15      shall be" -- "shall include distributions of

16      construction schedules" -- maybe "construction

17      activities and will be distributed to a

18      neighborhood distribution list on a weekly basis

19      identified three-week look ahead schedule,"

20      etcetera.

21                 MS. PALERMO:  I think, Victor, the

22      plan/community strategy and the neighborhood

23      distribution lists were going to be provided by

24      the applicant, that then if for some reason they
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1      missed people that they should be distributing it

2      to, I mean, they can ask you for guidance on

3      that, but it's their obligation to deliver.

4                 MR. PANAK:  That's fine.  Why don't I

5      just wordsmith this for the next hearing.

6                 MS. PALERMO:  That's fine.

7                 MR. PANAK:  I definitely understand the

8      intent here, and I can get the language right.

9                 MS. PALERMO:  That's fine.  We were

10      ending on Paragraph --

11                 MR. PANAK:  We're at 23 through 26.

12      Let's do 23 and 24.

13                 MS. PALERMO:  23 and 24, okay.  Do we

14      have any -- I do not have comments on either one

15      of those.

16                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  I did on 24.  Victor,

17      I don't know if this is possible, but I had given

18      you a rewrite of the first sentence of 24, and I

19      don't know if it's --

20                 MR. PANAK:  I've got it open.  That's

21      what it was, right?

22                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Yes.  Thank you.

23                 MR. PANAK:  25 -- sorry.

24                 MS. PALERMO:  Hold on.  I just want to
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1      read it.

2                 MR. PANAK:  Yeah, go ahead.

3                 MS. PALERMO:  I haven't finished here.

4      So did Randolph also add in "prior to

5      disconnection of any utilities"?

6                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN: I just moved that back,

7      Lark, because it was sort of dangling --

8                 MS. PALERMO:  I see.  I see.

9                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  -- at the end of the

10      sentence.

11                 MS. PALERMO:  So you just relocated it,

12      okay.

13                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Right, right.

14                 MS. PALERMO:  That seems perfectly

15      reasonable to me.  So that was 23 and 24.  Paul

16      Bell, do you have comments on those?

17                 MR. PANAK:  You're muted, but you kind

18      of shook your head, so I take that as --

19                 MS. PALERMO:  I interpret that as a no.

20                 MR. BELL:  You interpreted correctly.

21      Good lip reading.

22                 MR. GOLD:  Madame Chair, can I go back

23      to that for a moment, please?

24                 MS. PALERMO:  Sure.
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1                 MR. GOLD:  We have a possible -- what I

2      believe may be an abandoned storm drainage line

3      in the corner of the property.  So I would like

4      to be in a position where even if a utility -- if

5      there was an inactive utility that was under the

6      property, we would not be required to remove

7      that.  So I don't know whether the board is

8      receptive to language that would accommodate a

9      modifier, like an active utility line versus an

10      inactive or abandoned utility line.

11                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  I think "active" would

12      be fine before "utilities."

13                 MR. PANAK:  Right here, "active"?  Does

14      that work, Jonathan?

15                 MR. GOLD:  Yeah, I think that's fine.

16                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Yeah.  Well, could you

17      put "active" again, Jonathan, in the third line,

18      "active utilities, including, but not limited

19      to."

20                 MR. GOLD:  Right there.  Thank you.

21                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  And Victor, the word

22      "and" before "electrical power lines."

23                 MR. PANAK:  All right.  25 through 32.

24                 MS. PALERMO:  25 through 32.  The
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1      comment -- I have two comments, I think, maybe

2      three.  The first one is that Paragraphs 25 and

3      26 should be moved to the construction section,

4      just to be consistent with things that we are

5      trying to keep in the relevant sections rather

6      than -- this is really prior to construction, the

7      section that we're in.

8                 MR. PANAK:  I don't want to do that

9      right now, or everything is going to go crazy,

10      but I will do it.

11                 MS. PALERMO:  You'll make a note.

12      Okay, that's fine.  Yeah, that's true, it will

13      confuse all of us completely.  And there's a

14      comment from the applicant suggesting 27 be

15      edited -- oh, I see you added that.

16                 MR. PANAK:  I have it as a comment.

17      The limitation of the truck route --

18                 MS. PALERMO:  Within 200 feet of the

19      project site.

20                 MR. PANAK:  Yeah.

21                 MS. PALERMO:  I don't see why we would

22      object to that, but maybe somebody else has an

23      opinion about it.

24                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Do we need to look at
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1      any of the conditions that address the

2      construction management plan, or do they not get

3      into the level of detail of a distance from the

4      project site?

5                 MS. PALERMO:  Well, we have a draft

6      construction management plan, Randolph.  I don't

7      know if you've had a chance to read it or review

8      it, and I didn't -- I don't recall about this

9      aspect.  And we do have a reference in an earlier

10      part of this decision to that draft and to what

11      -- a general description of what's supposed to be

12      in the construction management plan.  There it

13      is, "designation of truck routes."  So it's not

14      limited there.

15                 MR. PANAK:  Well, this is a plan that

16      would show the truck routes.  I think the other

17      condition is about providing more on the

18      condition of those truck routes after

19      construction.  I think the intent there is that

20      beyond 200 feet, can you really say that any

21      damage to the road was due to this project's

22      construction traffic, versus something else.

23                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  I think that's right.

24                 MR. PANAK:  Is that correct, Jeff, Eli?
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1                 MR. ENGLER:  Yeah.  I mean, technically

2      a construction route may be all the way to the

3      Newton Corner exit off the Mass. Pike or 95.  I

4      mean, it might show the truck routes.  So

5      typically within my experience, as Mr. Meiklejohn

6      and Victor have said, I think it's the -- I don't

7      speak for the town, obviously, but I think it's

8      in the town's interest to make sure that the area

9      close and proximate to the construction site does

10      not get torn up, which would be more easily

11      traceable to our activity, as opposed to

12      something at the intersection of Washington and

13      Beacon, where -- what if that's part of the truck

14      route, but who's to say.  I mean, how many

15      vehicles pass through that every day.

16                 So we just want the specificity of the

17      proximity to the site.  Otherwise, we would be

18      very comfortable providing all the photographs,

19      video recording, and finishes to those streets

20      and sidewalks.

21                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  I'm comfortable with

22      the 200-foot length.

23                 MR. BELL:  Yeah, so am I.

24                 MS. PALERMO:  I am, too.  The next
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1      comment I have relates to the applicant's

2      requested edit about conditioning this obligation

3      on the applicant's determination that blasting is

4      necessary.

5                 MR. PANAK:  Condition 28, just to be

6      clear?

7                 MS. PALERMO:  Yes, it's Condition 28,

8      and I don't think that's appropriate.  I do

9      believe that this is typically required of all

10      our projects.

11                 MR. PANAK:  I can confirm that's true.

12                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  We'll accept this

13      drawing.

14                 MR. ENGLER:  We'll accept that.  I was

15      not aware of that.  It's good for Brookline, I

16      guess.  It's a little unusual, but if you require

17      it of all projects, then we will comply.

18                 MS. PALERMO:  Then we come to 30, and

19      there is a request about the -- this is the

20      street tree provision, and as I said, I feel --

21      it was why I thought it was important to add it

22      to our findings that this is a state statute.  We

23      don't have any jurisdiction.  Therefore, there's

24      no particular reason for us to weigh in on
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1      whether a tree needs to be removed or not.  It's

2      up to the town arborist, in accordance with a

3      process and a hearing.

4                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  I agree.  I would

5      rather not have an opinion about the health of

6      this tree.

7                 MR. ENGLER:  Well, I guess let me see

8      if we can qualify our comments.  Madame Chair, I

9      don't dispute your interpretation of your powers,

10      and the quality of that tree I agree is out of

11      your jurisdiction, but I think we would feel

12      somewhat comfortable if you had a comment that

13      said there is -- the zoning board supports the

14      removal of that tree, recognizing that it's in

15      the middle of our proposed driveway.

16                 Now, if the town arborist can say,

17      well, you know what, I recognize that, but I'm

18      not comfortable, because what if the town

19      arborist said yeah, you can't take the tree out?

20                 MS. PALERMO:  I think if that were to

21      happen, then you would need to redesign your

22      driveway, and the issue would be is that a

23      substantial or insubstantial change, which would

24      come back to the ZBA.  It's a risk,
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1      unfortunately, but it's one over which we have no

2      control.

3                 MR. PANAK:  I'd also add I don't think

4      the board can opine on the health of the tree.

5                 MR. ENGLER:  No, we're not asking --

6                 MR. PANAK:  I don't think there is --

7                 MR. ENGLER:  We're not asking the board

8      to opine on that.  We're just saying the board --

9                 MR. BELL:  Could we potentially say

10      that we would not object to the removal of the

11      tree if that is what the arborist determines

12      under the --

13                 MR. ENGLER:  Yeah, that would be -- we

14      would be fine with that.

15                 MR. PANAK:  Is that good?

16                 MS. PALERMO:  I think we could do that.

17                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Just to establish that

18      the arborist wouldn't be stepping on the board's

19      heels or doing anything the board didn't want if

20      you found that the tree could be removed.

21                 MR. ENGLER:  Right.  I would say

22      "currently shown" -- or yeah, "located."  Either

23      one.  Sorry.

24                 MR. PANAK:  Something like that?

Page 88

1-800-727-6396 Veritext Legal Solutions www.veritext.com



1                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Fine with me.

2                 MR. BELL:  Yes.

3                 MS. PALERMO:  "The town arborist

4      determines," with an S.

5                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Not following

6      "should."

7                 MS. PALERMO:  Oh, I guess I would

8      say --

9                 MR. PANAK:  "If the town arborist" --

10                 MS. PALERMO:  I was thinking "provided

11      the town" or "if the town arborist determines."

12      Yeah, I wasn't looking at the "should."

13                 MR. PANAK:  It's probably clearer.

14      It's simple language, simple meanings.  All set

15      on that.

16                 MS. PALERMO:  That brings us down to

17      Paragraph 30 -- where are we now?

18                 MR. PANAK:  We're still looking up to

19      Condition 32.

20                 MS. PALERMO:  Condition 32, okay.

21      Well, those are all my comments on Conditions --

22                 MR. PANAK:  25 to 32.

23                 MS. PALERMO:  Yes, 25 to 32.  Randolph,

24      do you have comments?
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1                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Yes, just two things

2      there.  I lost track of it, Victor, but let me

3      just -- it's actually in 28, the word -- the

4      phrase "construction of the project."  "Project"

5      should be capitalized, and there's probably more

6      of those.  Just search for "project."  I think it

7      should almost always be capitalized.

8                 But then a little more substantially, I

9      made a note earlier when we heard about the

10      applicant's proposed condition for follow up

11      informational materials about the use and final

12      design of the delivery drop-off area, and it

13      seems to me before we get to the construction

14      part of the decision, this would be a good place

15      to insert such a condition.  It may be adjacent

16      to the things about landscape design, which is in

17      what used to be 32.  I don't know if it still is

18      32.

19                 MR. PANAK:  This would be the ideal

20      place for that, I think, as Condition 33.

21                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Maybe it goes

22      something like "prior to the issuance of a

23      building permit."

24                 MR. PANAK:  Well, maybe before we go to
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1      that, Paul, do you have anything on 25 to 32?  If

2      not, we can --

3                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Oh, I see, that's the

4      next page already.

5                 MR. PANAK:  Yeah.

6                 MR. BELL:  What about the edit of the

7      applicant's requesting at the end of 32, are we

8      all good with that?

9                 MR. PANAK:  Yeah, I was going to bring

10      that up.  So it's changing "and subject to the

11      review and approval of the assistant director for

12      regulatory planning" to "subject to review and

13      approval of the assistant director for regulatory

14      planning for consistency with the approved plan

15      set of record referenced in this decision."

16                 From the staff side, I don't think we

17      have any issue with this.  That's what we would

18      look for, anyway.  Let's tackle the new Condition

19      33.

20                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Oh, he stepped away.

21      Jeff stepped away.  I mean, Jeff actually talked

22      his way through this one before, but I'm happy to

23      hear what the applicant would propose again, if

24      we could have it again.
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1                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  I think it was something

2      to the effect of "Prior to the issuance of the

3      building permit, we will submit either a

4      reasonable or a suitable landscaping plan" -- "a

5      final landscaping plan for the easement area."

6                 MS. PALERMO:  Yeah, I don't think I'd

7      limit it to a landscaping plan.

8                 MR. GOLD:  Yeah, I think it's more than

9      that, really, because there's going to be a fair

10      amount of asphalt there.  So it's a final design

11      plan.

12                 MS. PALERMO:  That's better, final

13      design.

14                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  I was surprised to learn

15      in this process, but maybe I'm wrong, but I think

16      of issues like this, it's the landscaping plan

17      that actually controls at the end in

18      construction, but maybe I'm wrong.

19                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Well, the suggestion

20      is landscaping sounds like plants, and speaking

21      for myself, I know I'm quite interested in the

22      sidewalk construction.  So I think a site plan or

23      construction site plan would be a little more

24      encompassing.
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1                 MS. PALERMO:  Yes, I would agree.

2                 MR. PANAK:  The site plan and the

3      landscaping plan.  I think in designing that

4      easement, you'd probably expose a civil plan.

5                 MS. PALERMO:  Okay.

6                 MR. PANAK:  "Shall submit to" -- who

7      does the board want this to go to?

8                 MS. PALERMO:  It's prior to the

9      issuance of the building permit.  It should

10      probably go to the --

11                 MR. PANAK:  Building commissioner.

12                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Building commissioner.

13                 MR. PANAK:  For review and approval?

14                 MS. PALERMO:  Yes.

15                 MR. PANAK:  "A site plan and landscape

16      plan."  Do we want to add language that says

17      something along the lines of "a site plan and

18      landscape plan produced in consultation with the

19      neighbor"?

20                 MS. PALERMO:  No.

21                 MR. PANAK:  Although it's kind of vice

22      versa.  It's "the neighbor will consult with

23      Eli."

24                 MR. ENGLER:  No, I don't think you need
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1      that.

2                 MS. PALERMO:  Yeah, I think that's more

3      than we can require.

4                 MR. PANAK:  I'm not sure how to refer

5      to this parcel of land.

6                 MS. PALERMO:  Just call it that, a

7      parcel, "to the parcel."

8                 MR. GOLD:  It's just a drop-off and

9      delivery parcel.

10                 MS. PALERMO:  That's right.  That's how

11      to identify it, "the drop-off and delivery

12      parcel."  Thank you for suggesting we insert that

13      there, Randolph.

14                 MR. PANAK:  This is going to get a

15      little complicated.   So prior Condition 33

16      through 39.

17                 MS. PALERMO:  Let's just make it a

18      little simpler.  If we go 33 through 37 and

19      just --

20                 MR. PANAK:  Yeah.

21                 MS. PALERMO:  Let me see if I have

22      anything on 33 through 37.  Yes, the checklist.

23      Do we have any -- have we heard anything from the

24      public works department about this suggested
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1      change by the applicant?

2                 MR. PANAK:  Not this suggested change,

3      no.

4                 MS. PALERMO:  Because I'd like to know

5      -- I mean, I'd like to know -- this really falls

6      within their purview.  It's not something I know

7      a lot about, but I'd feel more comfortable if we

8      could just get a little bit of feedback from them

9      as to whether this would be acceptable.

10                 MR. PANAK:  I tried reaching out to

11      them a few times on this decision.  I can try

12      again before the next hearing.

13                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Not that I'm the right

14      authority on this, but I do think -- we submitted

15      an updated -- a neater version of what -- of our

16      markup of the site plan checklist from our civil

17      engineer.  but I do think based upon the memo

18      that we got at the last hearing from the public

19      -- from the department of public works and

20      engineering, what we're saying is consonant with

21      what we said then that they approved or that they

22      agreed with, that our plan that responded to

23      their feedback did not fully comply with every

24      section of the site plan checklist in the same
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1      way that it didn't comply at their previous

2      review.  This is the only point I'm trying to

3      make.

4                 MS. PALERMO:  I mean, this is really

5      requiring the review and verification approval by

6      the director of engineering and transportation.

7      Are you saying that that director has, in

8      essence, approved your submission?

9                 MR. ENGLER:  I would say yes, Madame

10      Chair.  We're just trying to reference more

11      specifically the documentation that's already in

12      the public record and what's been reviewed so

13      that we don't get into a post permitting

14      situation where Mr. King is just working based on

15      a new set of criteria and saying, hey, wait a

16      second, you're not meeting all these parts of the

17      checklist, when he's reviewed it, reviewed our

18      plans, and basically said yeah, I'm comfortable

19      with this.

20                 MS. PALERMO:  Well, then let's get --

21      then I think we just need Victor to get

22      confirmation from him that he is comfortable with

23      what's been submitted to date, and we can then

24      reference --
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1                 MR. PANAK:  Well, Lark, I would say we

2      have received confirmation from the engineering

3      division that they are comfortable with what's

4      been submitted to date.

5                 MS. PALERMO:  I mean, in terms of does

6      it qualify.  I mean, I don't know what they've

7      said.  They may have said they're happy with what

8      they've gotten to date, but would we be leaving

9      behind some other matters by not including this

10      specific reference to the site plan review

11      checklist, as verified, and are we missing

12      something.  I just don't want to do that to them.

13                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Victor, are we able to

14      pull up their memo, the town engineering

15      department's memo, that I think was posted under

16      the last hearing on the website?

17                 MR. PANAK:  Yeah, I can do that.

18                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  They received our

19      annotated site plan checklist saying what we can

20      and can't comply with based upon our whole

21      redesign and consultation with them prior to

22      issuing this memo.  So I guess the question is

23      whether this memo clarified.

24                 MS. PALERMO:  I mean, to me, there's
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1      lots of issues still outstanding.  Yeah, they're

2      just saying that engineering is confident final

3      plans can be resolved.  Yeah, I don't think

4      that's an exact --

5                 MR SCHWARTZ:  Right.  Since then, we

6      responded to this, but they haven't responded to

7      our response.

8                 MS. PALERMO:  So I think this is not an

9      unreasonable condition as it's currently written.

10      If you get something else, or if Victor gets a

11      complete sign off on it --

12                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Well, no, I want to be

13      just a little careful, just to explain.  So there

14      are definitely a couple of things in the site

15      plan checklist that we cannot comply with on this

16      site, and they aren't required for DEP.

17                 I'm convinced that Robert King is

18      saying that he's confident that the final plans

19      can work out all issues.  He's acknowledging that

20      because we just don't have the -- there's certain

21      -- there's a couple of standards that we just --

22      that we know we can't meet that's been on the

23      table for a while.  So I mean, I think we'll come

24      back, but it is important because this condition
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1      would sort of render the project un-buildable.

2                 MS. PALERMO:  Well, what are those

3      items?

4                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  I'm going to pull them

5      up right now.  Hold on.

6                 MR. ENGLER:  I mean, there's a fair

7      amount of them, Eli.

8                 MS. PALERMO:  Well, then if there's a

9      fair amount of them, I don't know that you need

10      to pull them up.  I think we need to be sure that

11      they are on board with not requiring you to meet

12      those standards or comply with whatever those

13      requirements are.

14                 MR. PANAK:  I can resolve this with a

15      fairly quick phone call to engineering tomorrow.

16                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Okay.

17                 MR. PANAK:  I'll just call them up and

18      say are you comfortable with this condition,

19      worded as the applicant requested, do you

20      acknowledge that they will likely not -- will

21      definitely not be able to meet a fair number of

22      the site plan review checklists, and then --

23                 MR. BELL:  Can I make a suggestion that

24      we come up with some proposed language that could
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1      be inserted if Victor is able to confirm that

2      there's an agreement on waived items?  We don't

3      have to agree to put --

4                 MS. PALERMO:  If you have some

5      suggested language that you --

6                 MR. BELL:  I was just thinking

7      something like to comply with the code -- subject

8      to items that are specifically waived by them in

9      writing, except for items that are specifically

10      waived by them in writing?  I mean, Lark is

11      exactly right.  We can't step on their toes and

12      just assume that we know what the agreement is

13      between you and them as to what's been waived and

14      what hasn't.

15                 MR. PANAK:  Is that good, Paul?  It's a

16      little smaller here in the comment.

17                 MR. ENGLER:  Victor, I assume based on

18      what you said, you're going to reach out to Mr.

19      King tomorrow and will circle back with us with

20      the conclusion.  We're confident on his response,

21      but if he says otherwise, we obviously want to

22      know that, because we're either going to want our

23      engineer to reach out to him, or we're going to

24      want to look at this condition, but --
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1                 MR. PANAK:  Oh, yeah.

2                 MR. ENGLER:  -- we're not going to be

3      reworking the plan at this point in time.

4                 MR. PANAK:  If he says he's not

5      comfortable with this condition, I certainly

6      recognize the urgency of letting you guys know

7      that he says that.

8                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Victor, do you have the

9      latest -- the letter that -- the original version

10      of the site plan checklist was kind of red penned

11      by Peter Blaisdell, but then he did sort of a

12      formal one.  Do you have that?

13                 MR. PANAK:  Yes.

14                 MS. PALERMO:  Any other comments on

15      Paragraphs 33 through 36, which is now 37?

16                 MR. PANAK:  I have a request from the

17      applicant to change Condition 37, formerly 36, to

18      say "Subject to review and approval by the

19      director of engineering and transportation for

20      consistency with the approved plan set of record

21      and drainage analysis and supporting materials

22      submitted during the public hearing."

23                 MS. PALERMO:  It's hard for me to parse

24      that.  Where does that go?
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1                 MR. PANAK:  I can put it in as a track

2      change.

3                 MR. BELL:  It's similar to the permit

4      (?) that they asked for earlier about

5      consistency.

6                 MS. PALERMO:  Oh, oh, yeah.  I think

7      that's a little broad, and again, I think that's

8      inserting our opinion -- well, let me say my

9      opinion, if it's mine -- in a place that I just

10      don't have the --

11                 MR. ENGLER:  I don't think the zoning

12      board is overstepping its bounds with that

13      language because it was consistent with 40B.

14      Wether it's the director of engineering, whether

15      it's the planning department, any municipal

16      entity is reviewing the subsequent information

17      for consistency with what's been submitted.

18                 MS. PALERMO:  I'm not sure that's

19      entirely true.  I mean, there are building code

20      issues.  There are a whole variety of things that

21      they're reviewing for that -- I wouldn't want to

22      limit them and say no, you can only say does it

23      fit what they told us in the first place, and

24      it's just too broad an exception for them to
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1      operate under.

2                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  But Lark, does this

3      paragraph actually say that it limits it that

4      way?  I think --

5                 MS. PALERMO:  That's what I'm trying to

6      see here, yeah.

7                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  To me, it says this is

8      a necessary step that they need to go back and

9      review again with the director of engineering and

10      transportation the design relative to the

11      approved set of record drawings and so on.  It

12      doesn't actually stop engineering from imposing

13      other conditions.

14                 MR. BELL:  Because the --

15                 MR. ENGLER:  No, it does stop them from

16      imposing conditions because that would need to be

17      in the permit.  What it doesn't stop it from

18      doing is requesting additional details or saying

19      this is not clear or we want these inverts shown

20      on the engineering plan.

21                 It doesn't limit them in any way,

22      shape, or form from asking for that.  What it

23      does limit them is requiring us to redesign an

24      entire storm water system, you know, because they
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1      are unhappy with it.  I mean, it does limit them

2      from doing that because that's not consistent

3      with the plans that they've already, mind you,

4      seen and basically given a high level approval

5      of.

6                 So that's all we're saying is we want

7      them to look at it consistent, but if they need

8      additional details and the like, we're happy to

9      give that, and I think that's -- I know that's

10      consistent with the 40B regulations.

11                 MS. PALERMO:  I think this is something

12      that, once again, Victor should review with them.

13                 MR. BELL:  Yeah.

14                 MS. PALERMO:  As opposed to our

15      inserting our judgment here.

16                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Can I make one more

17      comment, Madame Chair?

18                 MS. PALERMO:  Yes.

19                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  I think in this case

20      it's important.  So for us to fully comply with

21      some of the standard in the site plan review

22      checklist, which go above and beyond DEP

23      standards, the only way we could have done it was

24      what we initially proposed of having an
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1      infiltration system below the foundation slab.

2                 So we went through this process with

3      the director, Robert King, and he said no, I'd

4      rather have you comply with DEP and maybe lower

5      your level of compliance with the town to avoid

6      that condition, because he had concerns with that

7      condition.  So my fear here is if we have

8      language -- I mean, to some extent, it seems to

9      me that the ZBA, through this document, does need

10      to set some bounds around here saying that the

11      parties went through this and agreed to this.

12                 And so they're going to enforce it, but

13      the department -- I mean, let's say somebody else

14      is at the department of transportation and

15      engineering when we go there, and they say no, we

16      want compliance with the site plan review

17      checklist, but we've already designed the whole

18      project, and many things have probably happened

19      that we can't go back to that level.  It seems

20      like if the condition allows them just to fully

21      apply the local ordinances and bylaws outside of

22      the sort of iterative process that we've already

23      gone through, it could really derail

24      construction.  That's my fear.
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1                 MS. PALERMO:  I understand your fear,

2      and I think -- again, I'm trying to avoid having

3      us step into the shoes of the director of

4      engineering and transportation in limiting what

5      he or she is expected to do without their input.

6                 MR. ENGLER:  Well, Madame Chair --

7                 MS. PALERMO:  They have not had input

8      on this specific question, and I think Victor

9      needs to ask.  I don't know.  They may say this

10      is not a problem.

11                 MR. ENGLER:  Madame Chair, just to beat

12      you to the punch, I was going to say it seems

13      like we have a disagreement on this language.  So

14      if Victor could add to his list to ask about this

15      condition, in addition to the other one, and

16      let's see what the department says, and hopefully

17      they'll be amenable to it.

18                 MS. PALERMO:  Right.

19                 MR. ENGLER:  And if they're not, we

20      need to know that so we can think about how we're

21      going to respond.

22                 MR. BELL:  Can I ask a question?

23                 MS. PALERMO:  Sure.

24                 MR. BELL:  I was scrolling up to the
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1      plan sets, and I'm lost.  Which number are we in

2      -- what paragraph are we in, 36, right?

3                 MS. PALERMO:  Yes.

4                 MR. BELL:  When it says "the approved

5      plan set of record," that is for 6 up above in

6      this?  Is that what that's referring to, all the

7      drawings listed?

8                 MR. PANAK:  Yeah, the lists of

9      drawings.

10                 MR. BELL:  And are you saying that like

11      -- are you saying that all of the storm water and

12      sewage facility designs are incorporated into

13      that plan set?

14                 MR. ENGLER:  Yes.

15                 MR. BELL:  And have they been stamped

16      or approved by the director of engineering?

17                 MR. ENGLER:  We believe they've been

18      approved at a schematic level by the director.

19      That's what we spent the last six months

20      discussing with them.  But as part of the

21      building permit said, there will be additional

22      details added to all of our plans that will be --

23      the plans will be largely -- will be consistent

24      with what the plans are that you guys have been
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1      looking at for six months, but they will have

2      considerably more detail.  So we want to have --

3      which is customary that the town will be

4      reviewing the plan set for consistency with what

5      this board has approved.

6                 MR. BELL:  Why is the word "drainage"

7      capitalized?  Is there a reason for that?

8                 MR. ENGLER:  No.  That can be lower

9      case.

10                 MR. BELL:  I think it should be an easy

11      ask of the director to ask them if this language

12      is okay with them, if they're agreeable to this,

13      if you guys are on the same page, because you

14      want to know that now anyway, because we could

15      write that, and if they're not on the same page,

16      it's not going to help you, honestly.

17                 So you might as well just find out.  So

18      I think that's probably a pretty easy ask to find

19      out between now and the next meeting, and if

20      they're okay with it, I personally am okay with

21      it if the director of engineering is okay with it

22      -- the director of engineering and

23      transportation.

24                 MR. PANAK:  I will call him tomorrow.
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1                 MS. PALERMO:  So do we have any other

2      comments on those sections or paragraphs before

3      and including 37?  If not, we'll move on to 38 --

4      well, I guess we can just do the next three, 38,

5      39 --

6                 MR. PANAK:  Formerly 37 through 39.

7                 MS. PALERMO:  37 through 39 on my copy

8      here.  I did not have comments on this.

9      Randolph?

10                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  I don't have any

11      comments either.

12                 MR. ENGLER:  In 39, we need to move the

13      reference to the web page.

14                 MR. PANAK:  Um-hmm.

15                 MS. PALERMO:  I don't think I have that

16      on mine -- or no, that's 38.  I see.  Any

17      comments?  Randolph?

18                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  I'm just looking at

19      former 39, now 40.  The inserted language,

20      "preferably during the construction season," I

21      don't think that's meaningful because the

22      beginning of the paragraph says "during

23      construction," which means during the period of

24      construction of the project.
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1                 So I don't think there is a

2      construction season anymore.  It's not like it

3      doesn't go around 12 months out of the year, and

4      I think the important thing is that they be

5      during the construction of work.

6                 MR. PANAK:  Okay.

7                 MS. PALERMO:  That's fine.  Paul Bell,

8      do you have comments?

9                 MR. BELL:  No.

10                 MS. PALERMO:  So now we move on to 40

11      -- what was 40, 41, and 42, and it's now 41, 42,

12      and 43.  I don't have any comments.  Randolph?

13                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  No.

14                 MS. PALERMO:  Paul Bell?

15                 MR. BELL:  I'm good.

16                 MS. PALERMO:  So now we go to

17      certificate of occupancy, through 46.

18                 MR. PANAK:  43 through 46.

19                 MS. PALERMO:  Interestingly enough,

20      those numbers -- I'm just trying to compare it to

21      what I have.  So 46 became 47.  I don't have any

22      comments on those.  Randolph?

23                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  No comments.

24                 MS. PALERMO:  Paul Bell?
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1                 MR. BELL:  I'm good.

2                 MS. PALERMO:  Transportation and

3      parking management, starting with Paragraph --

4      how did that become 48, when I have it as 49?

5                 MR. PANAK:  Well, that is definitely

6      unusual.

7                 MS. PALERMO:  Oh, wait a minute.  You

8      know what, that's 47.  I'm sorry.  No, I have the

9      wrong one.  It's fine, 47, 48, 49 -- I am

10      confused -- 50.  Okay, got it.

11                 MR. PANAK:  Well, why don't we just do

12      all but transportation and parking management

13      conditions?

14                 MS. PALERMO:  I think that's the way to

15      do it.

16                 MR. PANAK:  Whatever number they are.

17                 MS. PALERMO:  Whatever number they are.

18      Let's do everything before rubbish and recycling.

19                 MR. PANAK:  Yes.

20                 MS. PALERMO:  I have one comment, which

21      is 40 -- well, it's 50 under this version on the

22      screen, and it's that I -- this is my personal

23      opinion, but I really would not require the

24      parking spaces to be unbundled.
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1                 I see no reason to do that, and I think

2      this is a decision that's up to the applicant.

3      And I think it may have come over from a rental

4      project, because to me, logically, it's typical

5      to sell a parking space with a unit when you're

6      doing condominiums, whether it's affordable or

7      market.  But if people have a different opinion,

8      let me know.

9                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Lark, is your point

10      that you don't want to deprive the applicant of

11      options and how they bundle or don't bundle the

12      parking spaces?

13                 MS. PALERMO:  Yes.  I see no advantage

14      to anything, to the town, to affordable housing,

15      to mandating that they unbundle them. And as I

16      said, it's a sort of atypical approach to take to

17      parking with condominiums.

18                 It's commonly done with affordable

19      rental properties, and there are reasons for

20      doing it in that case.  I don't see any reason

21      for doing it.  If the applicant chooses to do it,

22      it's up to the applicant, but I don't see any

23      reason to require it.

24                 MR. BELL:  Is there any condition
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1      somewhere that says how many parking spaces can

2      be given to a particular unit or that each unit

3      is entitled to a certain number or anything like

4      that?

5                 MR. ENGLER:  No.

6                 MS. PALERMO:  No.

7                 MR. GOLD:  (Inaudible) this condominium

8      document issue.  I mean, (inaudible) proposing

9      that that just be taken out entirely.

10                 MS. PALERMO:  I am.

11                 MR. ENGLER:  We would not object to

12      that.

13                 MR. PANAK:  Any objections from

14      anybody?

15                 MR. BELL:  I don't have any objections

16      to that.

17                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  I don't think I do

18      either, unless, Lark, you probably -- I'll just

19      ask it as a question.  You don't want to change

20      the wording to say "the applicant, at their

21      option, may bundle or unbundle"?  Maybe that's

22      just too vague.

23                 MS. PALERMO:  No.

24                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Let's get rid of it,
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1      then.  Thank you.

2                 MS. PALERMO:  The only other comment I

3      have on this section of parking and

4      transportation is the applicant's request to edit

5      Paragraph d, whether the elevation of the

6      sidewalk is going to be determined by their plans

7      that have been submitted, as opposed to a broader

8      -- "will be at the elevation of the sidewalk to

9      maximize impacts to pedestrians."

10                 Again, this is one of those things

11      where I think the town engineer needs to

12      specifically weigh in, because I don't know the

13      level of detail of those plans.  Maybe Randolph

14      does.

15                 MR. ENGLER:  Well, I would say this.  I

16      think what we're trying to do is actually give

17      the town engineer more authority because he or

18      she can determine -- because frankly, I don't

19      know where this language came from, but we've had

20      the elevation of our sidewalk and our driveway

21      shown throughout the process, which has been

22      reviewed by the town engineering department, and

23      I couldn't say, for instance, exactly if it is

24      exactly at the elevation of the sidewalk of our
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1      driveway entrance, but I can say the town

2      engineering department has not raised that as an

3      issue.

4                 To put it differently, what if the

5      elevation of the sidewalk to meet this condition

6      was put exactly at the driveway entrance, and

7      that created other unintended consequences

8      related to storm water management and other

9      things.  I think we just want the plans, which

10      we've submitted and spoken of extensively to be

11      governed, as opposed to this language, which

12      strikes us as a little bit more arbitrary.

13                 MS. PALERMO:  It's not arbitrary,

14      really, but it is allowing for more leeway, and

15      the tension we're experiencing here is that -- as

16      you said earlier, all these plans are schematic,

17      meaning there's a lot of detail that is not

18      included.  And we, as the zoning board, are

19      approving, assuming we approve the special

20      permit, a project that is still full of sort of

21      large conception.

22                 And the reason we have conditions like

23      this is if for some reason -- and it may be your

24      storm water management made you decide to elevate
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1      the driveway above the sidewalk.  And I know

2      that's a silly example, but there needs to be

3      some ability on the part of the town to say no,

4      we need to get appropriate elevations for

5      sidewalk and driveway, and maybe the way is to

6      pick up the sidewalk.

7                 I don't know, but it's tying hands for

8      no particular reason, other than your worry that

9      your plans are not going to always govern, and

10      that's not really true either.  Your schematics

11      will.

12                 MR. ENGLER:  Right, but the plans

13      should govern.  Our only point -- and I don't

14      want to beat this to death, but what if the

15      plans, we reviewed it and we submitted it, and

16      they were detailed, and everything worked, and

17      the town engineering department looked at it, and

18      they were comfortable, but then they said as

19      we're going through the condition, oh, wait a

20      second, the driveway entrance cannot be -- what

21      does depressed mean?  What if we're a half an

22      inch depressed from the elevation of the

23      sidewalk?  Do we meet the condition or don't we?

24      What if we're an inch, what if we're two inches?

Page 116

1-800-727-6396 Veritext Legal Solutions www.veritext.com



1                 It just seems to us to be subjective,

2      as opposed to does the plan work from a civil

3      engineering standpoint and a pedestrian safety

4      standpoint.  So let's make the plans govern, not

5      some arbitrary shall not be depressed when --

6      what does that mean?

7                 MS. PALERMO:  Well, then the only way

8      to do it is to get the department now to review

9      your plan and tell us --

10                 MR. ENGLER:  But they already did.

11      They already did, Madame Chair.

12                 MS. PALERMO:  -- the condition level of

13      detail on this issue.  That's the only way to do

14      it.

15                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  I have the plan up, if

16      anyone is interested.

17                 MS. PALERMO:  I am not capable of

18      determining what an engineering plan provides.  I

19      don't have that expertise, so I can't make the

20      judgment.  If someone on the board is comfortable

21      making the judgment, and it could be Randolph,

22      then I'm -- then we'll consider that.  I'm not.

23                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  I have two comments

24      about -- or three comments about this.  First of
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1      all, we have included this condition on other

2      recent decisions.

3                 The second comment is I think Mr.

4      Engler's point is reasonable that we've gotten to

5      decisions about design at a schematic design

6      level.  I think we can -- I have a suggestion

7      coming in a minute for how to get that into this

8      sentence.  But the point of, it's not to do with

9      storm drainage.  This is to do with continuity of

10      the pedestrian sidewalk so that -- we're just

11      talking about the driveway portion as it crosses

12      the sidewalk.  I don't think driveway entrance is

13      a particularly well defined term.

14                 So the intent of this in my

15      understanding is that as the path of vehicles

16      crosses the sidewalk that the vehicles don't do

17      it in a road cut through the sidewalk.  They

18      drive over the sidewalk, just like in the

19      driveway to somebody's house.

20                 So you could make some minor edits.

21      You could say, "The driveway, as it crosses the

22      sidewalk, shall not be depressed, but will be at

23      approximately at the elevation of the sidewalk"

24      or something like that.
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1                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  I think that's a good

2      suggestion, and I think also in this condition, I

3      think we're kind of -- we're on a thematic point

4      here, which I think it makes a lot of sense what

5      we're discussing.  But in this particular

6      condition, I don't think it's of significance or

7      concern to us that the imposition of this

8      condition will in any way really throw off

9      construction as like compared to something -- the

10      decision about complying with the site plan

11      checklist.  I think we don't need to go too much

12      further on this one.

13                 MR. ENGLER:  Eli, I mean, far be it for

14      me to get in the way.  If you're comfortable with

15      this, that's fine.  Mr. Meiklejohn's suggested

16      language I think is a little bit more reasonable.

17      If we could go with that, I think that's awesome,

18      and we could move on.

19                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  I think that language is

20      great if we can do that.

21                 MR. PANAK:  Randolph, do you want to

22      give me the language?

23                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Yeah.  Strike

24      "entrance" and say "the driveway, as it crosses
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1      the sidewalk, shall not be depressed, but shall

2      be approximately at the elevation of the

3      sidewalk" and so on.

4                 MR. BELL:  I support that language.

5                 MS. PALERMO:  I do, too.

6                 MR. PANAK:  Just noting for the record,

7      I guess, that condition and all of these under

8      Condition 50 come from the transportation board

9      letter.  They provide a list of mitigation

10      recommendations.

11                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  If it didn't, I would

12      take out "to minimize impact to pedestrians," but

13      if they want that in there, then I don't object

14      to it.  I also don't think it's necessary.

15                 MR. PANAK:  Well, the zoning board can,

16      as part of the comprehensive permit, take or

17      leave any of the suggested mitigation from the

18      transportation board, but it's obviously

19      preferable not to mess with the board, to leave

20      them as is as much as possible.

21                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Lark, can I back up

22      one just while we're in this section of the page?

23                 MS. PALERMO:  Of course.

24                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Just at the top of the
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1      screen here, "Vehicles exiting the site will be

2      limited to a right turn only."  So I'm going back

3      to our little delivery, drop-off easement parcel.

4                 Vehicles exiting that delivery and

5      drop-off parking will not be exiting the site

6      because that's not part of the site, but I would

7      be interested in limiting the way that those

8      vehicles can turn and drive away on Bartlett

9      Crescent in the same manner as the vehicles

10      exiting the site proper.  It's a little tricky

11      because they're probably backing out of there, so

12      what's a right turn.  But Lark, do you see what

13      I'm getting at?

14                 MS. PALERMO:  I see what you're getting

15      at.  This is the place where I'm not sure --

16      because that little parcel of land is not part of

17      the project.

18                 MR. ENGLER:  Respectfully, I think

19      Madame Chair is right, Mr. Meiklejohn, in this

20      case.  I don't think you can condition that

21      because it's not part of a 40B parcel.

22                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Well, why will

23      vehicles be entering that drop-off area?  Is it

24      not only to serve -- I mean, is that going to
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1      be --

2                 MS. PALERMO:  It is, but --

3                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Is the property owner

4      going to allow deliveries of all kinds to use

5      that -- what you've defined as a kind of proposed

6      area of easement use?

7                 MR. ENGLER:  Well, keep in mind, we

8      don't have exclusive use.  So what if somebody

9      came to deliver something to the Five Washington

10      site.  They're not -- I mean, they're not

11      beholden to this permit, but they have the same

12      rights to that easement that we do, so who's to

13      say is that truck coming to our -- I mean, I

14      think legally, I mean, I would -- I'm not a

15      lawyer, I just play one on TV, but I'm pretty

16      sure you cannot condition something off site

17      relative to --

18                 MR. BELL:  I have to say I don't agree

19      with that.  I think you can because it's an

20      easement, and an easement is a property right.

21      So I actually think you could -- I don't know

22      that we should, but I think we could, and it's

23      also a condition of the overall approval of the

24      project.
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1                 MR. PANAK:  So I'll weigh in here.  I

2      didn't weigh in earlier when we were talking

3      about the easement itself, but I did talk to town

4      counsel as to how far the board can go in

5      requiring improvements to the easement.

6                 This is related to the drop-off and

7      pickup, and he said the board can have a

8      condition that says that the easement has to be

9      used by the applicant for drop-off and pickup,

10      but that we couldn't require a plan included in

11      the decision as an exhibit or a plan sheet in the

12      plan set of record that showed how that parcel

13      would be improved.

14                 So we couldn't require that.  I think

15      requiring that a right turn only sign be on that

16      parcel would probably fall under that category.

17      That's something that we can't require.  But

18      potentially, the sign could be placed on the

19      parcel itself in the town right of way.

20                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  I'm going to set aside

21      my comment and just remark that this may take

22      care of itself when it comes time for the

23      director of engineering to say where the sign

24      even is.  It may be that the appropriate place
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1      for it is on the other side of Bartlett Crescent,

2      at which point it becomes visible from a lot of

3      places.

4                 MS. PALERMO:  Right.

5                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  I will move on.

6                 MR. GOLD:  Are we deleting that

7      condition?

8                 MR. PANAK:  We're just not changing it.

9                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  That was a proposed add,

10      John.

11                 MR. GOLD:  I understand.

12                 MR. PANAK:  There's an applicant

13      requested edit here for reconstruct all sidewalks

14      adjacent to the property, changing it to

15      "reconstruct all sidewalks immediately in front

16      of the subject property," which I think is --

17                 MS. PALERMO:  I assume that's what we

18      intended.

19                 MR. PANAK:  Yes, correct.

20                 MS. PALERMO:  So I don't have a problem

21      with that.

22                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Victor, on the next

23      one, now numbered 51, I had sent you other

24      language for that, the effect of which was to
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1      make the applicant the active party, not the

2      director, if you can paste that in.

3                 MR. PANAK:  Sorry, which condition, 51,

4      or now 51?

5                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  The one that's now 51,

6      yeah.  Lark, this is trying to get the same

7      actions -- the same result, but to make the

8      required actions required of the applicant.

9                 MS. PALERMO:  I see.

10                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Which is consistent

11      with most of the other conditions.

12                 MS. PALERMO:  Yes.  I don't have an

13      objection to that.  I think it's an improvement.

14                 MR. PANAK:  So now rubbish and

15      recycling.

16                 MS. PALERMO:  I have no comments on

17      what's now 52 and 53.  Randolph?

18                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  No, neither do I.

19                 MS. PALERMO:  Paul Bell?

20                 MR. BELL:  I am good.

21                 MR. PANAK:  There's a small edit from

22      the applicant saying they're changing "and the

23      trash recycling pickup company will be

24      responsible" to "and the trash recycling pickup
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1      company or property manager will be responsible."

2                 MS. PALERMO:  I don't have a problem

3      with that.

4                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Okay.

5                 MR. BELL:  I'm okay.

6                 MS. PALERMO:  So our next category is

7      infrastructure.  I have no comments.  Randolph?

8                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  I actually don't have

9      anything for the rest of the decision.

10                 MS. PALERMO:  The rest of the decision.

11      Actually, neither do I.  That speeds things up a

12      little bit.  How about you, Paul?

13                 MR. BELL:  I don't either.

14                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  I was like what happened

15      here.  I feel like we're flying.  That was quite

16      intentional.  I would not have expected that to

17      happen.

18                 MS. PALERMO:  Well, it is approaching

19      10:00, so we've been at this a long time.

20                 MR. PANAK:  Right.  Well, at least

21      we've been at it so long, all the public members

22      are gone, so we won't have to take public

23      comment.

24                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Victor, we didn't have
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1      any more comments or proposed changes.

2                 MR. ENGLER:  No.

3                 MS. PALERMO:  Well, we still have a

4      waiver list to discuss, and I will check with my

5      fellow board members to see if there's energy and

6      appetite for going through this waiver list

7      tonight.

8                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Lark, do you mean go

9      through to edit or go through to vote them one by

10      one?

11                 MS. PALERMO:  No, edit.

12                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  I have one thing.  I

13      just sent some language edits to Victor because

14      it includes language that isn't consistent with

15      the decision, using the word "develop" instead of

16      "project" and that sort of thing.  Victor, do you

17      have those?

18                 MR. PANAK: Yes.

19                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  We don't have to go

20      through them.

21                 MR. PANAK:  No, I got your comment.  I

22      didn't change the waiver list myself.

23                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  That's fine.

24                 MR. PANAK:  But yeah, I completely

Page 127

1-800-727-6396 Veritext Legal Solutions www.veritext.com



1      agree.  Jonathan, it looks like you're taking

2      notes on this, but yeah, any references to

3      "development" should be "project," any references

4      to "developer" should be "applicant," anything

5      else like that.

6                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Poor John.  The

7      formatting of this document is --

8                 MR. GOLD:  It was a struggle.

9                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Every time he has to

10      change it, the lines go out.

11                 MR. GOLD:  It's a real struggle.

12                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  That was my only

13      comment on that.

14                 MS. PALERMO:  That's your only comment

15      on the waiver list?

16                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  On the waiver list.

17                 MS. PALERMO:  Well, my comment was on

18      the first item to add in the property description

19      the development -- in this case, it would be "the

20      project is a multifamily housing development with

21      21 condominium units."  I would just add that

22      into the description.

23                 MR. PANAK:  24.

24                 MS. PALERMO:  24, excuse me.  I'm
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1      misreading what I was supposed to write here.  As

2      I said, it's almost 10:00.  24 condominium units.

3      And then the other comment I have now is that the

4      ones -- the rest of the zoning bylaw waivers, I

5      don't have comments on.  I guess we should start

6      with that.  Paul Bell, do you have any?

7                 MR. BELL:  I do not.

8                 MS. PALERMO:  And Randolph, I gather

9      you don't either?

10                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Correct.

11                 MS. PALERMO:  But going to the town

12      bylaws, the tree removal permit process, again,

13      I'm back to the issue of the shade tree act and

14      how much authority we really have to get involved

15      with tree removal, which in my mind, is really

16      superceded by the state statute.  So I would not

17      be comfortable at this point with that.

18                 And the storm water management -- or

19      drainage -- storm water drainage, storm water

20      management plan, I don't know -- I guess, again,

21      without our checking with the Department of

22      Public Works, I can't --

23                 MR. ENGLER:  Madame Chair, I think --

24                 MR. GOLD:  You have the authority to --
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1                 MS. PALERMO:  I'm not comfortable with

2      waiving our storm water drainage bylaw.

3                 MR. GOLD:  Without hearing more from

4      the --

5                 MR. ENGLER:  Well, correct me if I'm

6      wrong.  Doesn't that tie to what we've talked

7      about to one of the questions that Victor is

8      going to ask?

9                 MS. PALERMO:  It does.

10                 MR. ENGLER:  So why don't we table

11      that.  I mean, Madame Chair, I think we

12      understand your position on 3.17.  So we'll be

13      comfortable with that, but I mean, we feel very

14      differently about 8.26, because that, you

15      absolutely 100 percent have the right to waive.

16      Whether or not you want to or not is a different

17      issue.  3.17, I agree that's -- that's an

18      interesting one.

19                 It comes up a lot in 40B, but yes, that

20      is a state -- under state jurisdiction.  8.26 is

21      not.  You have every right to waive that under

22      40B, but let's not belabor it, and let's see what

23      the department says, and we can revisit it.

24                 MS. PALERMO:  And then 5.3, I don't
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1      have a problem with waiving that, and I will ask

2      my fellow board members if they have comments on

3      these three provisions.  Randolph?

4                 MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  I don't have anything

5      to add to what you said, Lark.  Yeah, nothing to

6      add.

7                 MS. PALERMO:  Paul Bell?

8                 MR. BELL:  The same as Randall, I don't

9      have anything to add, other than what you've

10      said.

11                 MS. PALERMO:  Well, we have completed

12      our review of the draft decision and the proposed

13      waiver list.

14                 MR. PANAK:  We do have a member of the

15      public who has a question.

16                 MS. PALERMO:  We do, okay.  I was going

17      to say that's our next --

18                 MR. PANAK:  Only one member of the

19      public is still here.  I'm not sure if they want

20      to be promoted, but they have a fairly specific

21      question.  So they're asking are -- the two

22      previously noted tower lights abutting 37

23      Bartlett from the previous plans, are they still

24      included in the plans, or have they been removed
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1      along the driveway?

2                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  The photometric plans

3      from tonight would take precedence over the

4      previous schematic lighting plan by Monika

5      Kraemer.  So if Mike is referring to --

6                 MR. PANAK:  Yeah, okay, I think that

7      answered it.

8                 MS. PALERMO:  Are there any other

9      members of the public who would like to speak or

10      comment, Victor?

11                 MR. PANAK:  There are not.

12                 MS. PALERMO:  Well, in that event, I

13      will request that the -- again, to confirm that

14      April 26 is a convenient date when everyone is

15      available and request that the developer allow us

16      an extension until that date.

17                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Yeah.

18                 MS. PALERMO:  To keep the hearing open.

19                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Can I just ask -- I know

20      that it's not a binding request, but if I may, is

21      it the board's general intention that if we keep

22      the public hearing open until the 26th that you

23      would expect you would potentially vote the

24      decision at that hearing on the 26th?
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1                 MS. PALERMO:  Yes.  That's typically

2      what we do, yes.

3                 MR SCHWARTZ:  Well, I appreciate that.

4                 MS. PALERMO:  And I can also say that

5      as you can see, we go over this in painstaking

6      detail so that by the time we get to that hearing

7      date, we'll have a document that's virtually

8      final.  There may be a few more typos that we

9      find, but there's not going to be significant

10      changes, other than what we've discussed, and the

11      benefit to keeping the hearing open is that you

12      get to continue to discuss the same document with

13      us at the next hearing.

14                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Yeah, okay.  It does

15      seem like -- again, I guess this isn't binding,

16      but it does seem like we're moving close to a

17      decision that the board would feel comfortable

18      approving.

19                 MS. PALERMO:  Well, I'm not going to

20      speak for my fellow board members, but we are --

21      I think we'll find out at the next meeting, but I

22      think there's a comfort level of the amount of

23      work we've put into this, that's for sure.

24                 MR. ENGLER:  Madame Chair, we
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1      appreciate that.  Can I just ask -- I want to

2      make sure we have -- I mean, we've made great

3      progress tonight, and I sincerely appreciate the

4      board's diligence and contributions.

5                 So between now and the 26th, most

6      immediately hopefully we'll get answers from the

7      engineering department through Victor.  Hopefully

8      we get some affirmations of those two conditions.

9      Eli is going to provide some clarity on those six

10      lights on the photometric plan.  We'll get that

11      submitted.  And then, other than that, I think

12      we'll presumably get an updated decision and

13      landscaping -- I mean, waiver letter of what we

14      talked about tonight.

15                 MS. PALERMO:  Yes.

16                 MR. ENGLER:  And that's it.

17                 MS. PALERMO:  Yes.

18                 MR. ENGLER:  Did I miss anything?

19                 MS. PALERMO:  I don't have anything

20      else on my list.

21                 MR. PANAK:  I have miscellaneous

22      updates to the decision, like capitalizing

23      "applicant" and "project," but I don't that's

24      really worth having on a to-do list.
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1                 MS. PALERMO:  Well, yes, that will be

2      part of the revised decision.

3                 MR. PANAK:  Yeah.

4                 MR. ENGLER:  Yeah, we're going to --

5      Jonathan is going to be providing an updated

6      waiver list.

7                 MR. GOLD:  Yes, we will.  We'll do that

8      promptly.

9                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  I'll extend the public

10      hearing through April 26, and I do thank the

11      board for all the care and hard work working

12      through this project and now trying to finalize

13      the decision and the waiver list, and we very

14      much appreciate it.

15                 MS. PALERMO:  Well, you're welcome, and

16      our goal is to come up with a project that we

17      feel will be successful for the town and you.

18                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Yeah, same here.  I

19      think it's going to be a good project.

20                 MR. PANAK:  Eli, can you send me the

21      agreement to the continuance in writing by email?

22                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Yeah.

23                 MR. PANAK:  Thanks.

24                 MS. PALERMO:  So --
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1                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Do you want me to send

2      it right now, Victor?

3                 MR. PANAK:  Whenever you want.

4                 MS. PALERMO:  At this point, we will

5      then continue this hearing until 7:00 on April

6      26.

7                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Thanks everyone.

8                 MR. ENGLER:  Thanks everybody.  We

9      appreciate it.

10                 MS. PALERMO:  Thank you all.

11                 MR. ENGLER:  Have a nice evening.

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24
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1                   C E R T I F I C A T E

2      COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

3      NORFOLK, ss.

4

5            I, ARLENE R. BOYER, a Certified Court

6      Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

7      Commonwealth of Massachusetts, do hereby certify:

8            That the proceedings herein was recorded by

9      me and transcribed by me; and that such

10      transcript is a true record of the proceedings,

11      to the best of my knowledge, skill and ability.

12            IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand

13      and notarial seal this 27th day of April 2022.

14

15

16

              <%21414,Signature%>

17               Arlene R. Boyer, CVR

18               Notary Public

19

20               My Commission Expires

21               November 21, 2025

22

23

24
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